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Chairman’s Message
To all my beloved milk producer 
members and members of the Board. 
I honored and felt a chosen one 
from the almighty by having an 
opportunity to address by this message 
to all the stakeholders. Maahi has 
successfully completed a decade, 
which will be remembered as an era 
of its grit, perseverance and fighting & 
winning against all odds. During this 
journey, the company has witnessed 
unconditional support from its all 
members, sahayaks, employees, 
customers and all the directly and 
indirectly associated stakeholders and 
as a result, company has efficaciously 
achieved a sales turnover of Rs. 1,734.67 
Crores, while the Profit Before Tax is 
Rs. 20.72 Crores during the financial 
year 2022-23.
At the onset of this remarkable journey 
started with millions of hopes and 
expectations now translated into the 
milestone of reality from “Hope to 
Happiness” and became a hallmark of 
value-oriented organization supported 
by the continual faith from its milk 
producer members prospered with the 
company.
On this moment, I take an opportunity 
to express my gratitude to all the 
milk producers associated with the 
organization.  
At the time of commencement of 
its operations, on 18th March, 2013 
around 85 thousand milk producer 
members kept their faith and stake 
on the company has now crossed the 
magical figure of 1 lakh which shows 
trust of its members towards the 
company.  The company was having 
only 8% women member based at 
the very beginning of its operations, 
which have now increased to 48% in 

last decade, which has boosted true 
women participation in the animal 
husbandry practices directly, and 
indirectly contributing to the larger 
objectives of women empowerment at 
rural levels. 
The company has truly lived it’s  values, 
mission and vision by providing 
maximum returns to its members and 
paid average milk price of Rs.50 per 
litre milk price during the last financial 
year i.e. 2022-23 with additional 
consideration of Rs. 35.50 crore to 
its eligible members based on the 
fulfillment criteria.
The company’s decision to take over 
of cattle feed factory in the year 2018 
on long lease from NDDB with an 
objective to provide high quality fodder 
to milk producers, has significantly 
yielded exceptional results in fulfilling 
company’s internal capability of 
producing quality fodder & mineral 
mixture for milk producers, the same 
is being also supplied to other milk 
producers organizations as per their 
requirements.
In the end, I congratulate to all 
the officers and employees of the 
company for the efficient operations 
of the company and making various 
programs successful. I am thankful to 
expert directors, producer directors, 
all the members, Mother Dairy Fruit 
& Vegetables Pvt. Ltd., customers, 
vendors, service providers, bankers 
and all other stakeholders. I express my 
sincere gratitude to NDDB and NDDB 
Dairy Services for technical guidance 
provided during the year.

Mahendrasinh Jadeja
Chairman

(F.Y.2022-23)
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Chief Executive’s Message
It has been a privilege and a proud 
moment to be associated with the 
company having exhilarating past 
decade. While working with Maahi 
I have been fortunate to work under 
various roles and functions in the 
company before bestowed as a Chief 
Executive of the company. All these years, 
I have witnessed unquestionable passion 
among its all the stakeholders towards 
the company to become successful.
With distinct organization DNA 
driven by its values, mission and 
vision, during the past decade, the 
company have successfully established 
itself as one of the preferred and 
homegrown FMCG brand, which 
is synonyms to quality and milk 
producers’ entrepreneurship.
From the inception days where the 
company operations commenced in 
provocative environment confronting 
uncertain future with unwavering 
expectations of peoples related to 
its existence, sustainability and its 
viability with very limited resources have 
successfully overcome from all these 
obstacles and transformed itself as one 
of the most innovative and resourceful 
company in the dairy business which 
creates and add value for its stakeholders 
in entire dairy value chain.
The company is widely apprise and 
acclaimed for its digital practices in the 
dairy operations leveraging technology 
at farmer’s doorstep enabling them 
to participate in the main stream 
of economy by the implementation 
of numerous android based mobile 
applications like, Automatic Milk 
Collection App, ERP software at 
BMC for milk collection, Milk On 
Mobile App to get Maahi milk and 
milk products, BMC Auto Monitoring 
System for quality testing of the 
collected milk at BMC etc. 
With a portfolio of only four products 
i.e. Milk, Curd, Butter Milk and 

Ghee at the time of company’s 
operationalization, the company 
product basket are being increased to 
large number of product range. On 10th 
anniversary of our the organization 
i.e. 18th March, 2023, the product 
basket was further increased after the 
launch of  Lassi in three flavors namely 
Mango, Rose and Lychee which have 
received unprecedented response from 
the consumers. 
With an objective of providing value 
added services to members, company’s 
long awaited  DVHS (Doorstep 
Veterinary Health Services) also known 
as Maahi Pashu Seva is being started 
with a team of qualified veterinary 
doctors during the year 2022-23. DVHS 
is contributing to quality treatment of 
animal, disease prevention & cure as well 
as encouragement for world class animal 
husbandry practices at farmer’s doorstep.
During this journey of Hope to 
Happiness, all these years, the company’s 
commitment towards its value, mission 
and vision are being tested by numerous 
obstacles i.e. Cyclone, Animal epidemics, 
Pandemics. However, with the support 
of unconditional determination of all the 
employees against all odds, the company 
has successfully encountered all its 
challenges and strengthen the faith of all 
its stakeholders with unwavering trust.
I congratulate to all the employees. I express 
my sincere & heartfelt thanks to all the milk 
producer members of the organization for 
their continued cooperation as well to the 
expert directors and all the members of 
the board of directors for their guidance 
during the year.
At the end, I express my gratitude to 
National Dairy Development Board 
(NDDB), NDDB Dairy Services (NDS) 
and Mother Dairy Fruits and Vegetable 
Private Ltd. (MDFVPL) for their 
immense support from time to time.

Dr. Sanjaykumar Govani
Chief Executive & Director
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Financial year 2022-23 has been 
marked as a landmark year for 
the company, as the company has 
completed 10 years of successful 
operations on 18th March, 2023. 
It is the journey from Hope to 
Happiness, Hope is the faith which 
inspire millions to see the light in 
despair darkness and Maahi has 
been epitomized as Hope for all the 
milk producers who were in despair. 
With the commencement of Maahi’s 
operations on 18th March, 2013, the 
hopes come true for number of milk 
producers and that’s why the day 
which has been known and celebrated 
not just by the company but by 
Lakhs of milk producers’ family and 
stakeholders associated with the 
company as “Maahi Day”.
During the journey from Hope to 
Happiness, company has confronted 
various hitches, however, with the 
strong commitment to our Values, 
Mission and Vision, company has 
achieved various landmarks in its 
journey and brought Happiness to 
Lakhs of milk producers’ families 
and all other stakeholders associated 
directly and indirectly with the 
company.

Women Empowerment

With the focus of empowering women 
in the animal husbandry business, 
company has reached to 48% women 
participation in total members, which 
initially was around 8% only.

Making stakeholders self-reliant
Touching the life of even distantly 
located village, company has ensure 
to mitigate the rural migration 
issue, and with its consistency and 
transparency in all operational 
activity, company has managed 
to create earning opportunities at 
rural level for its members, sahayak, 
distributors, retailers, transporters 
and other directly or indirectly 
associated stakeholders.

Capacity Building
The object of the company is not just 
the upliftment of milk producers 
through generating revenues for them 
but also to empower them to sustain 
against the constant changing world. 
Company has played a vital role in 
capacity building of its members 
and all other stakeholders through 
various training programs like 
Woman Awareness, Youth Awareness, 
Leadership Development, Children 
Awareness etc.

Adherence to Company’s Mission
With the mission to give maximum 
returns to members, company has 
always given priority to its milk 
producers members by paying 
competitive rate, returns and 
providing quality services. During the 
FY 2022-23, milk producers’ payment 
as % of turnover was 81.11%.

Journey of Decade... Hope to Happiness….
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Atmanirbharta through 
Digitalization

With the development of various in 
house android based application, 
company has successfully manage 
to bring all the requirement of its 
stakeholders in just one click viz. Milk 
on Mobile, Maahi Member, Maahi 
AMCS, Maahi Sales Order, Maahi 
Sahayak application, Maahi Pashu 
Seva and many more and company has 
truly become Atmanirbhar in various 
aspect of its operationalization.

Partnering in resolving 
global health issue

Micronutrient deficiencies are 
rampant in India, and continue to be 
significant public health problems, 
which adversely impact the health 
and productivity of all the population 
groups. In order to address the 
deficiency of micronutrients in 
general public, Ma is the first and 
only organization in Gujarat to 
launch Fortified milk with Vitamin A 
& D as per the guidelines of FSSAI to 
join social mission with NDDB and 
Tata Trust. This helps in eradication 
of malnutrition and contributing in 

National Health Mission of Govt. of 
India.
Maahi owns quality mark logo 
certified by NDDB which is the symbol 
of quality guaranteed products.

Leading brand in milk business
Initially started with merely few 
products, with the strong commitment 
to provide quality products, “Maahi” 
brand is now emerged as one of the 
country’s leading brand with wide 
range of quality product portfolio i.e. 
Poly Packed Milk, Curd, Ghee, Cow 
Ghee, Premium Ghee, Kadhi chhaas, 
Kathiyawadi chhas, Flavoured Milk, 
Paneer, Shrikhand, Mishti Doi, Lassi, 
Skimmed Milk Powder, Sweets etc. 
with millions of happy customers.

Prospering Animal Health 
by scientific practices

Following the objective of balanced 
diet, care and treatment of milch 
animal, company has adopted 
scientific approaches by providing 
various animal husbandry services 
viz. Ration Balancing, Fodder 
Development, Artificial Insemination, 
specialized feeds for animals as well as 

Average Milk Price Paid to Member Producer (Year Wise)
in Rupees per Liter
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Door Step Veterinary Services which 
have made significant strides in 
prospering animal health, improving 
their quality of life, and also helps to 
increase income of milk producers. 

Preserving Environment 
for better future

With the progress of company as well 
as its stakeholders, company also 
believes its responsibility towards 
the environment preservation by 
proactively taking various steps viz. 
promoting renewable energy sources, 
energy efficiency and plantations. 
Company has started to adopt renewal 
energy sources by installing solar 
power plants and promote plantation 
at its operational areas. 
By adopting these strategies and 
fostering a collective commitment to 
environmental preservation, we are 
creating a better future for generations 
to come, ensuring a healthy planet for 
all living beings.

Awards and Recognitions
• Council for Fair Business Practices 

Award (CFBP):
 India’s one of the most prestigious 

CFBP award under the category of 
Manufacturing Enterprise-Large on 
4th May, 2022 at Mumbai. 

• NCDFI eMarket Award:
 NCDFI eMarket award by Shri Amit 

Shah, Honorable Union Home 
Affairs & Cooperation Minister on 
10th April, 2022 at Gandhinagar.

• Recognition by NDDB for Digital 
Payment:

 Company has been recognized for 

promoting the Digital Payment to 
milk producers by NDDB on 26th 

November, 2020 at Anand.
• India Dairy Award 2020:
 Company has been awarded in 

category of Social Impact by 
Agriculture Today Group on 10th 
January, 2020 at New Delhi.

• The Champion of Food 
Fortification:

 Championship momento conferred 
for initiating milk fortification in 
Gujarat by FSSAI on 12th April, 
2019 at Ahmedabad.

• Best FPO Award:
 Awarded by ACCESS and ROBO 

bank at Livelihood India Summit 
on 28th January, 2019 at New Delhi.

• Milk fortification Champion 
Awarded by FSSAI & TATA Trust:

 Awarded by FSSAI & TATA Trust as 
a “Milk Fortification Champion” for 
initiative taken by the organization 
to create awareness of Fortified milk 
across Gujarat on 5th September, 
2018 at New Delhi.

• Appreciation for Empowering 
Women by NDDB:

 For the women empowerment 
work done by the company, at its 
Milk Pooling Point “Madhupur”, 
Jamkhambhaliya, has been 
appreciated by National Dairy 
Development Board under National 
Dairy Plan on 1st June, 2018 at 
Anand.
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Business and Operations
(A)  Milk Procurement:
	With the  proact ive  act ions , 

committed team ef forts ,  the 
company has achieved around 30% 
growth in the milk procurement 
during the decade. Further, despite 
adverse effects of Lumpy Skin 
Disease (LSD) outbreak during 
1st  quarter of  the reporting 
year, company has been able to 
achieve growth of 9.64% in milk 
procurement volume as compared 
to the last year i.e. 7.74 LKGPD milk 
through 2,542 Milk Pooling Points 
(MPPs) spreading across Saurashtra 
and Kutch region.

	With consistent commitment 
towards ensuring maximum returns 
to the members, average milk price of 
Rs. 50.00 per liter paid to the 
members during the financial year 
2022-23. This apart, company has 
paid an additional consideration of 
Rs. 35.50 Cr to all eligible members. 

	Company has facilitated 435 
members to get installed flexi biogas 
plant under various government 
schemes till the date of reporting. 

 Towards continual efforts of 
strengthening milk procurement 
system and further enhancement 
of milk quality, by chilling the 
collected fresh milk of members 
at village level itself, during the 
reporting year, 9 more 5 KL BMCs 
have been installed at MPPs under 
Hub-spoke model.  

 In the last 4 years, 13,309 members 
have been facilitated to avail cattle 
loan amounting to Rs. 198.75 Cr. 
from formal banking sources to 

meet their financial needs to expand 
their dairying activities.

(B) Producer Institution Building 
(PIB):

It was a big challenge to associate 
milk producers with Maahi at the 
time of inception with challenges 
like huge operational area, limited 
manpower, lack of awareness regarding 
membership criteria, payment of milk 
poured by the members directly in 
bank account etc. However, with the 
village meeting campaign conducted 
by field team in each and every village 
of Maahi’s operational area, it was 
become possible to create awareness 
among the milk producers and within 
a very short span of 6 months from 
the date of inception of the company, 
around 85,000 milk producer members 
were enrolled. Over a period of ten 
years, member base of the company 
has reached to 1,13,691 by end of the 
FY 2022-23.
 During the year under review, 

various awareness programmes and 
trainings have been conducted as 
below:

• 1 , 1 8 6  Me m b e r  Aw a r e n e s s 
Programs (MAP) in which 24,778 
members have participated.

• 652 Women Awareness Programs 
(WAP) in which 12,835 women 
member have participated.

• 6  Leadership Development 
Programs (LDP) in which total 
112 members were trained.

• 29 Youth Awareness Programs 
(YAP) under which 761 youth 
from rural have participated.
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• 176 Member Relation Group 
(MRG) Training Programs through 
which 2,024 MRG members were 
trained.

 During the year under review, 
13,126 VCG meetings & 704 MRG 
meetings were conducted with pre-
planned agenda. To promote the 
Digitalization, all the VCG meeting 
recorded in VCG meeting app- an 
android based mobile application 
which helps to reduce the use of 
paper and makes compilation of 
data easy.

 As a part of the training programme 
for the producer directors and to 
develop the skill and knowledge of 
new technology in dairy industries, 
an exposure visit conducted at IDF 
World Dairy Summit 2022, New 
Delhi, from 11-16 September, 2022.

(C) Field Engineering Service   
         (FES):
 Within a short span of the company’s 

operationalization, activities related 
to maintenance, repairing and 
installation of Chilling center, 
BMC unit, Analyzer, Electronics 
Weigh Scale (EWS) and other 
connected equipment have started 
to handle in-house by the Field 
Engineering Service department 
which initially carried out through 
external agencies. 

 In furtherance of the “Mahi 
AMCS” project launched last year, 
the system for milk collection 
through bluetooth data converter 
devices- an Android based app was 
implemented at 1000 MPPs during 
the year 2022-23 and phase wise all 
our MPPs have been covered under 

“Maahi AMCS” project.
 During the year under review, 

548 UPS powered devices have 
been replaced with solar system at 
Milk Pooling Points (MPPs) which 
resulted into reduction in electricity 
expenses of Sahayak.

(D) Productivity Enhance- 
 ment Services (PES):
Productivity Enhancement Service 
is core for increasing income of milk 
producers in a scientific way. Since 
inception, Maahi is also working on 
improving productivity of animals of its 
members by providing various services 
viz. Artificial Insemination, Ration 
Balancing, Fodder Development, 
Deworming, Vaccination etc.
Maahi Pashu Seva:
• In continuation to company’s 

commitment to increase the income 
of milk producers by keeping their 
milch animal healthy, Doorstep 
Veterinary Health Service (DVHS) 
project “Maahi Pashu Seva”, has been 
launched on 6th September, 2022 at 
Talaja BMC of Bhavnagar district 
and gradually the services have been 
covered in all our operational areas. 

• During the year under review, 10,728 
animals were treated including 387 
pertains to major surgical operations 
by the team of experts doctors.
 Artificial Insemination (AI) 

Services:
 74,703 AI were carried out by 210 

trained Mobile AI Technicians in 
1,249 villages.
Deworming:
 In order to help the members to keep 

their animals healthy & free from 
worm infestation with an effective 
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& safe anthelmintic, Maahi provides 
deworming bolus regularly and 
during the year under review, total 
7,692 doses have been supplied to 
milk producers at affordable rate.
Mastitis Control Popularization 
 Project (MCPP):
• 183 nos. of pooled milk samples 

tested by CMT for subclinical 
mastitis from selected 25 MPPs 
under MCPP project. 

• Total 531 nos. of cases found with 
various types of disorders and treated 
with EVM practices.

• Under the project, 37 Antibiotic 
Residue and somatic cell count test 
have been performed and 48 samples 
were tested for Aflatoxin residue in 
milk. 

• Total 4,872 EVM books have been 
distributed to VCG, MRG & milk 
producers.
 Animal Tagging Campaign:
• To record our member milk 

producer’s animal holding data, 
company has developed in-house 
android based application in which 
sahayak, tagger and our field staff 
can register member’s tagged and 
non-tagged animals data. During 
the year under review, total 3,93,957 
animals were registered.

• With an objective to cover all animals 
of 100% milk producer members 
under ear tagging campaign, during 
the year under review, 81,151 
members’ animals were covered 
under tagging activity and total 
2,71,599 animals have been tagged 
from 2,434 MPP villages.
 Vaccination during Lumpy Skin  
 Disease (LSD) outbreak:
 During Lumpy Skin Disease (LSD) 

outbreak, company has taken 

prompt actions to vaccinate cattle 
of 53,970 members with the help 
of Animal Husbandry Department, 
Government of Gujarat.

(E) Quality and Manufacturing:
 Maahi has been recognized as most 

successful Producer Company with 
its quality milk and milk products. 
Quality is the prime concern for 
the company and Maahi ensures 
that every product passes through 
specified stringent quality checks 
at each stage before released to the 
market.
 C omp any  has  b e en  able  to 

significantly improve MBRT of raw 
chilled milk from 87 minutes in the 
year 2014-15 to 153 min in the year 
2022-23, which reflect the strength 
of the quality systems at the milk 
procurement level. 

 37 BMC/ CC have been certified 
with ISO 22000 & ISO 9001. 

 On the occasion of 10th anniversary 
of the Company on 18th March, 
2023, Lassi in three flavors namely 
Mango, Rose and Lychee have been 
launched, which have received 
unprecedented support from the 
customer.

F) Sale & Marketing:
With the commitment to our values and 
focus on providing quality products to 
our customers, journey which was 
started with sale of poly packed milk 
and butter milk under co-branding 
with Mother Dairy, has reached to 
a level where the company has been 
able to establish trust amongst the 
customers, distributors and retailers, 
and now “Maahi” Brand is well known 
across India.
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 Product basket: 
 In short span of 10 years, Company’s 

products baskets consist of Poly 
Packed Milk, Curd, Ghee, Cow 
Ghee, Premium Ghee, Kadhi chhaas, 
Kathiyawadi chhas, Flavoured Milk, 
Paneer, Shrikhand, Mishti Doi, Lassi, 
Skimmed Milk Powder, Sweets etc. 
with best quality having different 
variants in different consumer pack 
sizes consisting total 74 SKU.
 Market coverage & Infrastructure:
 Presently, Company has strong 

infrastructural sales & distribution 
network spreading in the entire 
Gujarat  comprising of  1 ,348 
Distributors, 25,897 Retailers, 399 
Exclusive Parlours (MPO, CODO, 
DODO Maahi Mall, Rural Route), 
Milk On Mobile, Mobile Milk 
Parlours. Maahi has extended its 
presence across India through 
Modern Trade (D-mart, Reliance 
Fresh & Reliance Retails etc.) & 
E-commerce platforms (Amazon, 
Jio Mart & Big basket- Rajkot).
 Sales volume:
 During the year under review, 

company has achieved average 
sale of 3.14 lakh liter packed milk 
per day, Butter Milk-70,973 LPD, 
Dahi-12,928 KGPD, Paneer – 2,882 
KGPM, Flavored milk- 11,487 LPM, 
Shrikhand – 3,726 KGPM, Sweets 
– 2,972 KGPM. Further, during the 
year, company has achieved sale of 
Ghee – 2,215 MT, SMP- 58.58 MT 
and Lassi - 5,985 Liters.
 Marketing & Branding Initiatives:
 Company has participated as Silver 

Sponsor at the prestigious IDF 
(International Dairy Federation) 

world dairy summit at Greater 
Noida in September, 2022 wherein 
Honorable Prime Minster, Union 
Ministers as well as industrial 
personalities from global and India 
such as IDF VP, NDDB Chairman, 
and AMUL MD visited the Stall of 
Maahi during Summit. 

 Company also participated in other 
prestigious events such as IDA 
(Indian Dairy Association), Dairy 
Industry Conference at Gandhinagar, 
Indian Veterinary Congress and 
Annual conference at Kamdhenu 
University, Anand and Khadiyakorak 
– Gandhinagar. Further, company 
also participated in local district level 
Mela in Porbandar & Gir-somnath.

(G) Logistic-Supply Chain System:
 Logist ic plays a crucial  role 

especially while dealing with the 
perishable product like milk and 
milk products. company’s entire 
value chain connects approximately 
1,24,000 KM transportation daily, 
providing employment and income 
opportunity to several households 
and contributing their social 
economic growth. 

 Further, under the Government 
initiative of Doodh Sanjeevani 
project of providing flavored milk 
to school children and beneficiary 
women,  company organizes 
transportation to around 830 
Government schools & Anganwadis 
of Devbhumi Dwarka’s Kalyanpur-
taluka and of Kutch’s Rapar-taluka 
along with Lakhpat-taluka by 
supplying approximately 51,900 
flavored milk pouches every day to 
children & pregnant women.
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 Ent ire  dair y  va lue  chain at 
Maahi is served by both Inbound 
and Outbound logist ics  and 
transportation network which 
connects nearly 2,542 Milk Pooling 
Point (MPP), 11 manufacturing 
plants ,  25 ,897 retai lers  and 
1,348 distributors by its robust 
infrastructure and delivers around 
74 SKU of milk & milk products.

 Digitalization in logistic has made 
easy to track the vehicles right 
from the processing plant up to 
the delivery point of the finished 
products to the distributors. GPS 
system is installed in all PPM 
and Tanker movement vehicles 
and tracking is monitored. It has 
also improved routing to make 
the timely delivery to ensure best 
quality milk is available with end-to-
end solutions from milk producer to 
the customers. Further to facilitate 
our distributors, an android based 
application has been developed i.e. 
Maahi Sales Order through which 
our distributor can place order 
and also track the delivery status 
through the Application.

(H) Accounts & Finance:
 Account & Finance Dept. has vital 

contribution in bringing the joy 
to the lakhs of producer members 
by ensuring payment of milk 
to pourers’ bank account on 2nd 
working day of completion of every 
milk bill cycle.

 Efficient fund management leads 
to increase in interest income by 
71.68% and reduction in finance 
cost by 16.98% in FY 2022-23 as 
compared to FY 2021-22.

 Credit rating is an assessment of 
Credit worthiness of the company 

and CARE Rating Ltd. (‘CARE’) 
re-affirmed the “AA-” (Double A 
Minus) rating in FY 2022-23.

(I) Information Technology  
       (IT):
In keeping with the unprecedented 
developments and changes in the field 
of technology and digitalization across 
the world, Maahi has also prioritized 
digitalization in its various functions 
and developed various applications 
in-house like Maahi Member, Maahi 
Sahayak, Maahi Sahayak Agreement 
System, Maahi VCG Meeting, BMC 
Chilling Cost Management System, 
Cattle Feed Indent, Milk on Mobile, 
Maahi Sales Order, Maahi AMCS etc. 
which has played a vital role in making 
various functions of the organization 
easier, faster and transparent. 
 During the year under review, 

company has developed Maahi 
Pashu Seva application under 
project Doorstep Veterinary Health 
Services (DVHS);

 ‘Maahi Pashu Seva’ is first of its 
kind of paperless services provided 
to  mi l k  pro ducers  t hroug h 
mobile based android services 
developed in house by the IT team 
of company under DVHS project 
which helps milk producers to 
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book appointment for treatment 
of their animal by making online 
payment. The Application also 
helps to maintain digital records of 
history of animals. 

(J) Animal Feed & Nutrition  
       Unit (AFNU):
The low productivity of Indian dairy 
animals is attributed to many factors 
of which feed and feeding system is 
one of the major ones, against this 
backdrop Maahi deemed it appropriate 
to get into the cattle feed business with 
the objective of providing scientifically 
formulated feed at affordable prices to 
its members, Maahi has taken over the 
cattle feed plant from NDDB situated 
at Khenderi, Rajkot on lease basis w.e.f. 
1st April, 2018.
 During this five years’ period of 

time, company has achieved various 
milestone, the glimpse of which is 
highlighted below:

 Initially we were manufacturing and 
selling only 2 variants of cattle feed 
viz., Maahi Dan Power-50 Kg and 
Maahi Dan Regular-50 Kg and sold 
7810 MT of Cattle Feeds. Gradually, 
company has launched different 
types of cattle feed and mineral 
mixture, considering health and 
improvement of nutrition value of 
milch animals and during the year 
under report, company has sold 
20,502 MT of animal feed variants.

 The Unit has ISO 9001:2015 certified 
production facilities and company 
possess BIS logo on Maahi Dan 
Power BIS Type-II & Maahi Dan 
Sampoorna BIS Type-I)

 Company has started bypass 
protein plant in January 2020 for 
better health of milch animal and 
increase the milk production. 

This bypass protein cattle feed 
provides more protein to milk 
producers without any additional 
cost.

(K) Inventory Management:
 In a span of 10 years of successful 

op erat ions  of  Maahi ,  many 
initiatives are taken and process are 
defined for the better management 
and control of inventory at stores.

 Earlier all excess material were kept 
at central store at Junagadh and 
at BMC locations, now for better 
inventory management and tracking 
of the assets, critical spares and 
consumables, district wise cluster 
stores for all districts developed. 
Regular audit of cluster store carried 
out which helped accurate inventory 
management and timely availability 
of Items at BMC locations.

(L) Human Resource:
 The major accomplishments 

in the last decades taken place 
in HR functions of company is 
summarized below:

 Health and Life cover benefits to the 
employees and their family. Further, 
term life benefits to the employees.

 Adoption and implementation of 
various strategic business practices 
in company business operations i.e. 
Hoshin Kanri (Policy Deployment), 
5S (Housekeeping Management) & 
Kaizen (Change for Better) etc.

 Fully automated HRMS system 
implemented which covers Leave, 
Attendance, Payroll, PMS, Training, 
Recruitment, Travel & Claims to 
provide single window transparent 
solutions for all HR requirements.
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 Round the year Internal & External 
trainings for all the employees 
covering various functional, 
technical and behavioral training 
requirements. 

 Annual health check-ups for 
employees engaged in core business 
operations of milk receiving 
activities to support clean milk 
receiving process free from any risk.

(M) Corporate Social 
        Responsibility:
Maahi has always been at forefront 
of Voluntary CSR and believes in 
inclusive growth encompassing health, 
welfare and development of the people 
working with it and communities 
around the workplace. 
During the year under review, 
following projects were undertaken:
 Project “Atmasamman”:
• Under the Project, milk producers 

are educated by experts in the dairy 
industry on how to make animal 
husbandry an important means of 
livelihood as well as animal welfare 
in a scientific manner.

• Under the CSR Project “Atmasamman”, 
total 1,872 beneficiaries had visited 
cattle feed plant, Rajkot where these 
beneficiaries were given valuable 
information about importance of animal 
husbandry to enhance their livelihood 
and animal welfare through scientific 
manner.
 Project “Swasthya Sathe Vidhya”:
• The Project aims to eradicating 

hunger, poverty and malnutrition, 
promoting health care including 

preventive health care, sanitation 
and also to promote Education 

• Under the project, 17 child awareness 
programs have been conducted 
which have benefited 1,200 rural 
school children.

• To commemorate 75th Independence 
Day and to promote the “Har Ghar 
Tiranga” campaign, National Flags 
were distributed to all our MPPs, 
BMCs, distributors, retailers and 
employees.

• To promote the International 
Yoga Day and to celebrate the 
international Yoga day week and to 
create awareness about healthy life, 
company has sponsored around 
350 milk producers from different 
districts to participate in the event 
organized on 17th June, 2022 at 
Somnath which was promoted by 
Shri Parshottam Rupala, Hon’ble  
Minister of Fisheries, Animal 
Husbandry and Dairying. 
Project “Paryavaran”:
• On the occasion of Gandhi Jayanti 

‘Sw a ch ch h at a  Abh iy an’  w a s 
organized across all our operational 
areas by the employees of the 
Company.
Contribution to Prime Ministers 
 National Relief Fund:
• Company has contributed Rs. 

3,79,187/- towards Prime Ministers 
National Relief Fund.
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To,
The Members of 
Maahi Milk Producer Company Limited.
The Directors of the company are 
pleased to present their Eleventh 
(11th) Annual Report together with 
the audited financial statements for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2023.

1. Financial results and State of  
      company’s affairs:
The company’s financial performance 
for the year ended on 31st March, 2023 
is summarized below.

(Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Total Revenue 174,702.57 153,406.61
Total Expenses 172,630.88 150,538.42
Profit Before Tax/(Loss) 2,071.69 2,868.19
Tax Expense
     a.  Current Tax 578.00 737.56
     b.  Deferred Tax (59.42) (11.66)
Net Tax Expense 518.58 725.90
Net Profit After Tax/(Loss) 1,553.11 2,142.29

• During the year under review 
operations of the company was 
affected due to outbreak of lumpy 
virus. Even in adverse situation, 
company has achieved total revenue 
of Rs. 174,702.57 Lakhs as against the 
Rs. 153,406.61 Lakhs for the previous 
year i.e. increase of 13.88% compared 
to the previous financial year. Further, 
an average milk procurement during 
the year under review was 7.74 
LKGPD i.e. 9.64% growth compared 
to the last year. Company has earned 
a profit after tax of Rs. 1,553.11 Lakhs 
as against Rs. 2,142.29 Lakhs of the 
previous year.

• On 18th March, 2023 at the occasion 

of 10th anniversary of the Company, 
Lassi in three flavors namely Mango, 
Rose and Lychee have been launched. 
Now, Company’s products baskets 
consist of quality products viz. Poly 
Packed Milk, Curd, Ghee, Cow 
Ghee, Premium Ghee, Kadhi chhaas, 
Kathiyawadi chhas, Flavoured Milk, 
Paneer, Shrikhand, Mishti Doi, Lassi, 
Skimmed Milk Powder, Sweets etc.

2.  Limited Return (Dividend):
Your Directors have pleasure to 
recommend a dividend of Rs.8 per 
equity share on 41,59,317 equity shares 
of Rs. 100/- each for the financial 
year ended on 31st March, 2023. The 
dividend on equity shares is subject 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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to the approval of members at the 
12th Annual General Meeting (AGM). 
The dividend once approved by the 
members will be paid to those members 
whose names appear in the Register 
of Members as on 31st March, 2023. If 
approved, the dividend would result in 
cash outflow of Rs. 332.75 Lakhs.
3.  Transfer to Reserve:
The Board proposes to transfer an 
amount of Rs. 100 Lakhs to the credit 
of General Reserve in terms of relevant 
provisions of the Articles of Association 
of the company read with section 378ZI 
of the Companies Act, 2013.
4.  Change in nature of Business:
There is no change in the nature of the 
business of the company during the 
year under review.
5.  Material Changes and 

Commitments:
To the best of our knowledge, there 
have been no material changes and 
commitments, affecting the financial 
position of the company which have 
occurred between the end of the 
financial year to which the financial 
statements relate and the date of this 
Report.
6. Transfer to Investor Education  
 and Protection Fund:
Pursuant to the provisions of section 
124(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, if 
the dividend transferred to the unpaid 
dividend account of the company 
remains unpaid or unclaimed for a 
period of seven years from the date of 
such transfer then such unclaimed or 
unpaid dividend shall be transferred 
by the company along with interest 

accrued, if any to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund (the IEPF), a 
fund established under sub-section 
(1) of section 125. During the year 
under review, company has transferred 
unpaid/unclaimed dividend pertaining 
to FY 2014-15 amounting to Rs. 13.66 
Lakhs to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund. Year-wise amounts 
of unclaimed / uncashed dividends 
lying in the unpaid dividend account 
of the company, which are liable 
to be transferred to the IEPF, have 
been uploaded on the website of the 
company https://www.maahimilk.com/
Members/Unclaimed-Dividend and 
also on the website of the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs.
7. Share Capital:
The paid up share capital of the 
company at the close of the financial 
year remained Rs. 4,159.317 Lakhs 
while there were 1,13,691 members 
appeared on its Register of Members 
as on 31st March, 2023.
After the close of the financial year, 
because of admission of new members, 
cancellation of membership due to 
violation of Articles of Association and 
surrender of shares by the members, 
there are 1,04,492 members on the 
Register of Members and the share 
capital of the company stood at 
3,934.265 Lakhs up to the date of this 
report.
Voting rights and attendance at 
Annual General Meeting:
With regard to exercise of voting right 
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting 
of the company, out of the said 1,13,691 
members as on 31st March, 2023, only 
56,690 members are entitled to voting 
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right and 57,001 members who did not 
pour milk for at least 200 days totaling 
to 500 liters in a previous financial 
year (2022-23) have lost their voting 
rights and are not entitled to vote at 
the ensuring Annual General Meeting.
Further, out of 56,690 members who 
were entitled for voting, 165 members 
have surrendered their shares while 
membership of 8 members have been 
cancelled and up to the date of this 
report, effectively only 56,517 members 
will be entitled to exercise voting right 
at the ensuing Annual General Meeting 
of the company.
Those milk producers who were 
members as on 31st March 2023, 
but whose membership have been 
cancelled post 31st March, 2023 will be 
entitled to get the dividend for financial 
year 2022-23, if any declared by the 
members at the 12th AGM, but shall not 
be entitled to any share/membership 
related rights or benefits (including 
attendance & voting at AGM) as they 
have ceased to be the members of the 
company. Similarly, new members, 
who were admitted as members of the 
company post 31st March, 2023 will not 
be entitled for dividend for FY 2022-23 
as well as voting right at ensuing AGM.
8. Board of Directors:
(a) Appointment/Re-appointment/

Retirement at the 11th Annual 
General Meeting held on 2nd 

September, 2022
 Shri  Goganbhai Arashibhai 

Kandoriya (DIN: 08517743) 
(Class-B) was retiring by rotation at 
the 11th Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible for re-appointment, 
was re-appointed at the AGM.

 Shri Rambhai Ukabhai Ram 
(DIN: 07235592) was representing 
‘Class-B’ at the t ime of his 
retirement, and Shri Lalabhai 
Algotar (DIN: 07566162) was 
representing ‘Class-B’ at the time of 
his retirement, both of them have 
completed their second terms of 
appointed and, not eligible for re-
appointment as per the provisions 
of Article of Associations, retired 
at the 11th AGM and in their 
place members have appointed 
Shri Sharadkumar Mohanlal 
Mota (DIN: 09680368) (Class-A 
member) and, Shri Rambhai 
B ava kubhai  Bud has  (DIN: 
09680410)(Class-A member).

 To ensure the class representation 
of the members on the Board based 
on the patronage criteria, members 
of the company has appointed Smt. 
Nilamben Makabhai Golitar (DIN: 
09676104) (Class- C member) at 
the 11th AGM.

(b) Cessation and appointment of 
directors approved at the Board 
Meeting

 Dr. C P Devanand (DIN: 07773929) 
was retired on 26th October, 2022 
upon completion of his tenure 
as an Expert Director and in his 
place Shri Saugata Mitra (DIN: 
00541858) was appointed as an 
Expert Director w.e.f. 26th October, 
2022.

 Shri Sriram Singh (DIN: 06895219) 
has resigned from the post of 
Expert Director of the company 
w.e.f. 1st February, 2023 and in his 
place Dr. C P Devanand has been 
appointed as an Expert Director of 
the w.e.f. 28th March, 2023.
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9. Board Meetings & Committee  
 Meetings:
During the year under review, six Board 
meetings were held. The details of the 

Board meeting conducted during the 
year is as under:

Board Meeting No. Date of
Board Meeting

Board
Strength

No. of Direc-
tors Present

68th Board Meeting 31st May, 2022 13 11

69th Board Meeting 28th July, 2022 13 12

70th Board Meeting 30th September, 2022 14 13

71st Board Meeting 30th November, 2022 14 11

72nd Board Meeting 31st January, 2023 14 12

73rd Board Meeting 28th March, 2023 13 11

Me m b e r  R e l a t e d  C o m m i t t e e 
Meetings:

For the approval of applications 
for Transmission of shares of the 

company and name correction of 
members, company has Member 
Related Committee. During the year 
under review, committee met six times 
as under:

Committee Meeting No. Date of Committee Meeting

24th Committee Meeting 16th May, 2022

25th Committee Meeting 15th  July, 2022

26th Committee Meeting 21st September, 2022

27th  Committee Meeting 18th November, 2022

28th Committee Meeting 19th January, 2023

29th Committee Meeting 17th March, 2023

S t a k e h o l d e r s  R e l a t i o n s h i p 
Committee:
Pursuant to requirement of section 
178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

was constituted by the Board at the 
61st Board meeting held on 30th March, 
2021 to resolve the grievances of 
shareholders of the Company. The 
Committee consists of:
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Sr. No. Name of Director Designation

1. Shri Mahendrasinh Jadeja Chairman

2. Shri Vishvasbhai Dodiya Member

3. Dr. Sanjaykumar Govani Member

During the year under review, one 
committee meeting was held on 27th 
March, 2023.
10. Composition of Board:
Article 9.4 to article 9.6 of the Articles of 
Association of the company deals with 
the composition of Board. Article 9.4 
provides for the criteria for categorizing 
the members into different classes, 
Article 9.5 provides that to the extent 
possible, representation on the Board 
shall be based on the patronage of 
the respective class and Article 9.6 
provides that one fourth of the total 
elected directors shall retire by rotation 
at every Annual General Meeting and 
the directors who have been longest in 
office since their last appointment shall 
retire. As per Article 9.6 i, as between 
persons who became directors on 
the same day, those who are to retire 
shall, in default of and subject to any 
agreement among themselves, be 
determined by lot.  
Considering the above provisions, the 
new composition of the Board has been 
explained as below:
There were 1,13,691 members on the 
Register of Members as on 31st March, 
2023. Based on pouring pattern of 
members for FY 2022-23, there were 
64,004 members i.e. 56.30% of total 
members, who have fulfilled all the 
criteria of membership including those 
members who are admitted during 
the year 2022-23, but are deemed to 

belong to the class chosen by them 
and acquired the shares for that chosen 
class. Out of this, 6.15% belongs to class 
- A, 18.12% belongs to class - B and 
75.74% belongs to class – C. Whereas, 
the proportionate percentages of 
quantity of milk supplied during the 
year 2022-23 by the said Class - A, 
Class- B and Class - C of members 
were respectively 31.48%, 33.39% and 
35.13%. 
On the basis of the quantity of milk 
poured by the respective class of 
members, the desirable no. of directors 
on the Board should be 3 directors of 
Class- A, 4 directors of Class- B and 4 
directors of Class – C. 
As per Article 9.6 i of the Articles of 
Association, 1/4th i.e. three directors 
will retire at the ensuing AGM. 
Taking into account the provisions of 
Articles and present representation 
of the directors of the respective class 
on the Board, the retirement and 
appointment of directors on the basis 
of the recommendation of Nominating 
committee is as under:
Out of the 11 elected directors on 
the Board of the company, Shri 
Mahendrasinh Mahipatsinh Jadeja 
(DIN: 07566111), Shri Mathurbhai 
Rambhai Raiyani (DIN: 07566166) 
and Shri Vishvasbhai Ramsinhabhai 
Dodiya (DIN: 07885716) have been 
longest in the office from the date of 
their last re-appointment.
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Shri Mahendrasinh Mahipatsinh 
Jadeja (Class-A) was re-appointed 
on 10th September, 2019, whereas, 
Shri Mathurbhai Rambhai Raiyani 
(Class-C) and Shri Vishvasbhai 
Ramsinhabhai Dodiya (Class-C) were 
re-appointed on 3rd December, 2020 
will retire at the ensuing 12th AGM 
as they have completed their two 
consecutive terms as directors. Thus, 
they are not eligible for re-appointment 
as per the provisions of Article of 
Associations. In their place Board has 
on the basis of the recommendation of 
Nominating Committee recommended 
the appointment of Shri Ashokbhai 
Vitthalbhai Rangpara (DIN:10245794) 
representing Class – A, Smt. Hitarthi 
Kanaksinh Dodiya (DIN:10245643) 
and Shri Bharatkumar Mulubhai Vala 
(DIN:10245743) representing Class - C 
as director on the Board.
11. Dire c tors’  Resp onsibi l i ty  
 Statement:
In terms of Section 134 (5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Directors 
state that:
a)  In the preparation of the annual 

accounts for the financial year ended 
31st March, 2023, the applicable 
accounting standards have been 
followed and there is no material 
departures from the same.

b)  They have selected such accounting 
p o l i c i e s  an d  app l i e d  t h e m 
consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that were reasonable 
and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the 
company as at 31st March, 2023 and 
of the profit of the company for the 
financial year ended on that date;

c)  They have taken proper and 
sufficient care for the maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of 
this Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the company and for preventing 
and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

d)  They have prepared the annual 
accounts for the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2023 on a going 
concern basis; and 

e)  They have devised proper system 
to ensure compliance with the 
provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems were adequate and 
operating effectively.

12. Statutory Auditors:
Pursuant  to  the  provis ions  of 
section 139(2) of Companies Act, 
2013 read with rules thereunder and 
provisions of Chapter XXI-A, tenure of 
M/s. S.B. Billimoria & Co., Chartered 
Accountants as a Statutory Auditors 
completed upon conclusion of 11th 
Annual General Meeting and in their 
place appointment of M/s. Price 
Waterhouse Chartered Accountants 
LLP as Statutory Auditors has been 
recommended by the Board of Directors 
for the FY 2022-23.
The Auditor’s Report for financial 
year 2022-23 does not contain any 
qualification, reservation or adverse 
remark. 
Board of Directors recommends 
the re-appointment of M/s. Price 
Waterhouse Chartered Accountants 
LLP as Statutory Auditors for the 
FY 2023-24, who if appointed by the 
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members at 12th AGM, then holds the 
office till the conclusion of 13th AGM 
of the Company.
During the year under review, the 
Statutory Auditors has not reported any 
instances of frauds committed in the 
company by its officers or employees 
to the Board under section 143(12) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 details of 
which would need to be mentioned in 
this Report.
13. Internal Auditors:
M/s. Ernst & Young LLP, Chartered 
Accountants, New Delhi have been 
appointed as Internal Auditors of the 
Company for the Financial Year 2022-
23 by the Board of Directors in terms 
of Section 378ZF of the Companies Act, 
2013 and rules and regulations, made 
thereunder. The Internal Auditors 
conduct extensive audit throughout 
the year across all functional areas and 
submit their report to the Board.
During the year under review, no 
reportable material weakness in the 
operations was observed.
14. Corporate Social  
 Responsibility:
In compliance with the requirements 
of section 135 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Companies (CSR) 
Rules, 2014 as amended from time to 
time, company has adopted the CSR 
policy and the same is provided on the 
website of the company at https://www.
maahimilk.com/Members/CSR-Policy  
Disclosure as required under the 
Companies (CSR) Rules, 2014 read 
with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 as amended from time to time is 

enclosed as Annexure-A.
15. Cost Audit:
As per the provisions of the Companies 
(Cost Records & Audit) Amendment 
Rules, 2014, Cost Audit is not applicable 
to the company.
16. Policy relating to Anti Sexual  
 Harassment of  Women at  
 workplace:
The company is fully committed to 
uphold and maintain the dignity of 
every women working in our company 
plus zero tolerance towards any sexual 
abuse. The Anti Sexual Harassment 
Policy provides for protection against 
sexual harassment of women at 
workplace and for prevention and 
redressal of such complaints. The 
company has a policy which is in 
line with the requirements of the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at the 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013 and rules 
framed there under. During the year 
under review, no complaints were 
received.
17. Deposits:
The company has neither accepted 
nor renewed any deposits within the 
meaning of Section 73 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 as 
amended from time to time.
18. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees 

given and Investments made by 
the Company:

The company has not granted any 
loans, nor given any guarantee or 
securities or made investments within 
the meaning of section 186 of the Act.
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19. Secretarial standards:
The company complies with applicable 
provisions of secretarial standards 
issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India.
20. Pa r t i c u l a r s  o f  C o n t r a c t s , 

Arrangements with related 
parties referred in       Section 188 
of the Companies Act, 2013:

All  contrac ts  /  arrangements/
transactions entered into by the 
company during the year under review 
with related parties were in ordinary 
course of business and on arm’s length 
basis in terms of provisions of the Act. 
There were no materially significant 
related party transactions entered into 
by the company with the promoters, 
directors, key managerial personnel or 
other designated persons which might 
have potential conflict with the interest 
of the company at large. Further, during 
the year, the company had not entered 
into any contract /arrangement / 
transaction with related parties which 
could be considered material or which 
is required to be reported in the Form 
no. AOC-2 in terms of section 134(3) 
(h) read with section 188 of the Act and 
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014. Refer Annexure- B.
21. Internal Financial Control:
Company believes that internal control 
is a pre-requisite for better governance 
and that business plans should be 
exercised within a framework of checks 
and balances. Internal financial control 
over financial reporting have been 
designed for creating management 
efficiency, to provide reasonable 
assurance on efficient conduct of 
business, ensure safeguarding of assets 
and reliability of accounting practices.

The company uses renowned SAP 
system to record day to day transactions 
for accounting and financial reporting. 
The ERP system is configured to ensure 
all transactions are integrated seamlessly 
with the underlying books of account.
As per section 378 ZF of the Companies 
Act, 2013, company has re-appointed 
M/s Ernst & Young LLP, Chartered 
Accountants as Internal Auditors of 
the company for the year 2023-24. The 
audit is based on internal audit plan. 
The Internal Auditors independently 
conduct extensive audit throughout 
the year across all functional areas and 
submit their report to the Board.
22. Risk Management:
Company operates in a volatile 
and uncertain world with a rapid 
changes. These changes bring a mix 
of opportunities and uncertainties 
impacting the company’s objectives. 
Pursuant to section 134 (3) (n) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, a Risk 
Management Policy has been framed 
by the Board. Company has an elaborate 
Risk Management Framework, which is 
designed to enable risks to be identified, 
assessed and mitigated appropriately. 
Our company monitors and manages 
the principal risks and uncertainties 
that can impact its ability to achieve its 
strategic objectives. Company’s SOPs, 
organizational structure, management 
systems, code of conduct, policies and 
Values together govern how Company 
conducts its business and manage 
associated risks. With regular check 
and evaluation business risk can be 
forecasted to the maximum extent and 
thus corrective measures can be taken in 
time. Company believes that managing 
risks helps in maximizing returns.
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23. Vigil Mechanism:
The company is committed to adhere 
to the highest standards of ethical, 
moral and legal conduct of business 
operations. The company has a Whistle 
Blower Policy and has established the 
necessary vigil mechanism for directors 
and employees in confirmation with 
Section 177(9) of the Act and, to report 
concerns about unethical behaviour. 
The policy provides for framework and 
process to encourage and facilitate its 
employees and directors to voice their 
concerns or observations without fear, 
or raise reports to the management, 
of instance of any unethical or 
unacceptable business practice or event 
of misconduct/unethical behaviours, 
actual or suspected fraud etc. This policy 
is available on the company’s website on 
https://www.maahimilk.com/Members/
Vigil-Mechanism-Policy.
During the year, there has been no 
complaints received under the Vigil 
Mechanism.
24. E n e r g y  C o n s e r v a t i o n , 

Environmental  Protection, 
Technology Absorption & Foreign 
Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

The particulars required to be disclosed 
under section 134(3)(m) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and 
provision of Chapter XXIA, relating to 
energy conservation, environmental 
protection, technology absorption and 

foreign exchange earnings and outgo, are 
provided in Annexure-C to this Report.
25. Annual Return:
Annual Return of the Company 
in  accordance  S ect ion 92 (3) , 
Section 134(3)(a) of the Act read 
with Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014, is 
available on the company’s website 
at https://www.maahimilk.com/
Members/Annual-Return
26. Details of Significant and Material 

Orders passed by the Regulators, 
Courts and Tribunals:

No significant and material order has 
been passed by the regulators, courts, 
tribunals impacting the going concern 
status and company’s operations in 
future.
27. Acknowledgement:
The Board of Directors place on record 
their deep appreciation to employees at 
all levels for their hard work, dedication 
and commitment. The enthusiasm and 
unstinting efforts of the employees 
have enabled the company to achieve 
a milestone. 
The Board places on record its 
appreciation for the support and co-
operation company has been receiving 
from National Dairy Development 
Board, NDDB Dairy Services, Mother 
Dairy Fruit & Vegetable Private Limited, 
Customers, Suppliers, Distributors, 
Retailers and Members. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
         Sd/-

Mahendrasinh Jadeja
Date: 28th July, 2023 Chairman
Place: Rajkot (DIN:07566111)
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ANNEXURE- A TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per Rule 8(1) of 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]

1) Brief Outline on CSR Policy of 
the Company:

The company’s CSR policy aims to create 
a meaningful and lasting impact in the 
lives of beneficiaries. To achieve the 
desired impact, the company allocates 
its resources in specific strategic areas 
rather than spreading them thin 
over several areas. The company’s 
CSR policy includes activities which 
are in line with Schedule VII of the 
Companies Act, 2013. By prioritizing, 
Maahi focus on education, skilling 
and self- employment, it seeks to help 
people and communities to bridge the 
opportunity gap.

It aims to actively involve in the 
social and economic development 
of the society, in which it operates, 
share profits with the society through 
responsible business practices as well 
as good governance and bring positive 
changes to the lives of mankind. The 
company believes in delivering high 
quality products to meet the needs of 
the community.

2) Composition of CSR Committee:

Not applicable as per section 135(9) of 
the Companies Act, 2013
3) Provide the web-link where 

Composition of CSR committee, 
CSR Policy and CSR projects 
approved by the board are 

disclosed on the website of the 
company:

 https://www.maahimilk.com/
Members/CSR-Policy

4) Provide the details of Impact 
assessment of CSR projects 
carried out in pursuance of 
sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social 
responsibility Policy) Rules, 
2014, if applicable (attach the 
report): Not Applicable

5) (a) Average net profit of the 
company as per section 
135(5): Rs. 1,535.42  Lakhs

 (b) Two percent of average net 
profit of the company as 
per section 135(5): Rs.30.71 
Lakhs

 (c) Surplus arising out of the 
CSR projects or programmes 
or activities of the previous 
financial years: Not Applicable

 (d) Amount required to be set 
off for the financial year: 
Rs. 11.99 Lakhs

 (e) Total CSR obligation for 
the financial year (b+c-d): 
Rs 18.72 Lakhs

6) (a) Amount  sp ent  on CSR 
Projects (both Ongoing 
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Project  and other than 
Ongoing Project) : Rs. 20.14 
Lakhs

 (b) A m o u n t  s p e n t  i n 
Administrative Overheads: 
Not Applicable

 (c) Amount spent on Impact 

Assessment, if applicable: 
Not Applicable

 (d) Total amount spent for the 
Financial Year (a+b+c) : 
Rs. 20.14 Lakhs 

 (e) CSR amount spent or unspent 
for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (Rupees in Lakhs)

Total Amount
Spent for the

Financial Year.
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Total Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 

Account as per 
section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under

Schedule VII as per second pro-
viso to section 135(5).

Amount Date of 
transfer

Name of the
Fund Amount Date of 

transfer
20.14 NA NA NA NA NA

(f) Excess amount for set off, if any:

Sr. 
No. Particulars Amount

(Rupees in Lakhs)

i. 2% of average net profit of the Company as 
per Section 135(5)   30.71

Amount available for set-off for FY 2021-22 11.99
CSR Obligation for the FY 2022-23 18.72

ii. Total amount spent for the financial year 20.14

iii. Excess amount spent for the financial year 
[(ii)-(i)] 1.42

iv.
Surplus arising out of the CSR projects 
or programs or activities of the previous 
financial years, if any

Nil

v. Amount available for set-off in succeed-
ing financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 1.42

7. Details of Unspent Corporate 
Social Responsibility amount 

for the preceding three Financial 
Years: Not applicable 
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8. Whether any capital assets have 
been created or acquired through 
Corporate Social Responsibility 
amount spent in the Financial 
Year: No

9. Specify the reason(s), if the 
company has failed to spend 
two per cent of the average net 
profit as per section 135(5): Not 
applicable

     Sd/-   Sd/-

 Mahendrasinh Jadeja Dr. Sanjaykumar Govani
Date: 28th July, 2023 Chairman Chief Executive & Director
Place: Rajkot DIN: 07566111 DIN: 08814861

ANNEXURE- B TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Particulars of Contracts/arrangements made with Related Parties
[Pursuant to Clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 – AOC-2]

This Form pertains to the disclosure of 
particulars of contracts / arrangements 
entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub-
section (1) of Section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, including certain 
arm’s length transactions under third 
proviso thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements 
or transactions not at arm’s length 
basis.

There were no contracts or arrangements 
or transactions entered into during the 
year ended March 31, 2023, which were 
not at arm’s length basis.

Details of material contracts or 
arrangement or transactions at arm’s 
length basis.

There were no material contracts or 
arrangements or transactions entered 
into during the year ended March 31, 
2023.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
         Sd/-

Mahendrasinh Jadeja
Date: 28th July, 2023 Chairman
Place: Rajkot (DIN:07566111)
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ANNEXURE ‘C’ TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Statement regarding conservation of 
energy, environmental projection, 
technology absorption and foreign 
exchange earnings and outgo for the 
year ended on 31st March, 2023 as 
required under Section 134 (3) (m) 
and provisions of chapter XXIA of the 
Companies Act, 2013, which forms part 
of the Directors’ Report.

A.  Conservation of Energy:

(I) the steps taken or impact on 
conservation of energy & (II) 
the steps taken by the company 
for utilizing alternate sources 
of energy

In line with the commitment 
of  t he  comp any  towards 
c o n s e r v a t i o n  o f  e n e r g y 
through adopting automation, 
development and modification 
in  new technolog ies  and 
renewable source of energy, use 
of solar energy. Efforts are being 
made to reduce electricity and 
furnace oil consumption with 
the following steps:

i. Use of renewable source of 
green energy which resulted 
into increase in income of 
Sahayak. Solar power system 
is installed in replacement of 
1 KVA UPS to energize the 
milk testing equipment at 
MPP. 

ii. Day by day it is observed 
that ambient temperature 

is increasing and with the 
increase in temperature, 
efficiency of refrigeration 
system decrease which affect 
the quality of milk. 

 As a remedial measure, air 
cooled condensing system in 
Instant Milk Chilling Unit is 
upgraded with water cooled 
condensing system at Babra 
BMC, after upgradation, 
it is observed that there is 
improvement in refrigeration 
efficiency and as a result 
there is reduction in chilling 
time of raw milk. Water 
cooled condensing system is 
more efficient in all types of 
environmental conditions.  

iii. Continuous use of solar water 
heater system to increase raw 
water temperature which 
passes through boiler helps 
in saving in consumption of 
furnace oil.  

iv. With continuous use of 
instal led 115 KW solar 
rooftop power system, we can 
use renewable source of green 
energy and reduce electricity 
power consumption at AFNU 
plant.

 Impact of Energy conservation 
measure –

i. E s t i m a t e d  S a v i n g  o f 
Rs. 2500/- per annum is 



11th Annual Report 2022-23

26

expected in Energy bill at 
every milk pooling points 
which will indirectly add 
to the income of sahayak.  
Moreover, this saving will be 
a recurring saving for the life 
span of solar panel@20 years 
minimum and will help in 
protection of environment.  

ii. Modification in Instant Milk 
Chilling Unit (IMCU) helped 
in reduction in milk chilling 
cost by approx. 0.06 Rs. /
Lts. and reduction in milk 
chilling process time which 
improve the quality of milk 
with reduction in chilling 
cost. 

iii. Reduction in Furnace oil 
consumption by 0.03 liter per 
MT of cattle feed production 
in FY: 2022-23. As result 
we  are  s av ing  approx . 
Rs.0.20 Lakhs in furnace oil 
consumption in boiler.

iv. By installing solar rooftop 
power system, there is approx 
saving of Rs. 8.30 Lakhs/
Annum in FY 2022-23.

(III) The capital investment on energy 

conservation equipment during 
the FY 2022-23 is Rs. 65.04 
Lakhs.

B.  Environmental Protection:

Maahi Milk Producer Company Ltd. is 
fully committed to and always comply 
with all industry specific laws and 
regulations in all sphere of activities 
in the company without any leniency. 
Apart from compliance of the company 
specific, product specific laws and 
regulations, Maahi has been collecting, 
processing and disposing of consumer 
plastic waste as a part of EPR activity.

C.  Technology Absorption:

The company continues to use the 
latest technologies for improving 
the productivity and quality of its 
services and products. The company’s 
operations do not require significant 
import of technology.

D.  Total Foreign Exchange Earnings 
and Outgo:

Details of foreign exchange earnings 
and outgo during the year is as under:
Foreign Exchange earning  
-Rs.  2.66 Lakhs (USD 3361.95)  
Foreign Exchange outgo - Nil

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

         Sd/-

Mahendrasinh Jadeja
Date: 28th July, 2023 Chairman
Place: Rajkot (DIN:07566111)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF
MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
1. We have audited the accompanying 

financial statements of Maahi 
Milk Producer Company Limited 
(“the Company”), which comprise 
the Balance Sheet as at March 
31, 2023, and the Statement of 
Profit and Loss and the Cash 
Flow Statement for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information. 

2. In our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give 
the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity 
with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as 
at March 31, 2023, and its profit 
and its cash flows for the year then 
ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit  in 
accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing (SAs) specified under 
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our 

responsibi l it ies under those 
Standards are further described 
in the “Auditors’ responsibilities 
for the audit of the financial 
statements” section of our report. 
We are  independent  of  the 
Company in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the financial statements 
under the provisions of the Act 
and the Rules thereunder, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information

4. The Company’s Board of Directors 
is  responsible for the other 
information. The other information 
comprises the information included 
in the Directors’ report, but does 
not include the financial statements 
and our auditors’ report thereon. 

 Our opinion on the financial 
statements does not cover the other 
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information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon.

 In connection with our audit 
of  the f inancial  statements, 
our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 
If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there 
is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required 
to report that fact. 

 We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Responsibilities of management and 
those charged with governance for 
the financial statements

5. The Company’s Board of Directors 
is responsible for the matters stated 
in Section 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the preparation of these 
financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance 
and cash flows of the Company in 
accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 
133 of the Act. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding of the 
assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection 
and application of appropriate 
accounting policies;  making 
judgements and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal 
f inancial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of 
the financial statements that give a 
true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

6. In  prep ar ing  t he  f inanc i a l 
s tatements ,  management  i s 
responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. Those Board 
of Directors are also responsible for 
overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the 
audit of the financial statements

7. Our objectives are to obtain 
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reasonable  assurance about 
whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditors’ report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

8. As part of an audit in accordance 
with SAs, we exercise professional 
j u d g e m e n t  a n d  m a i n t a i n 
professional scepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of 
material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations,  or the 
override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of 
internal control relevant to the 
audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. Under 
Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we 
are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference 
to financial statements in place 
and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures 
made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness 
of management’s use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as 
a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention 
in our auditors’ report to the 
related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are 
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based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our 
auditors’ report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause 
the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, 
structure and content of the 
financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation.

9. We communicate with those 
charged with governance regarding, 
among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

Other matter

10. The financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended March 
31, 2022, were audited by another 
firm of chartered accountants 
under the Act who, vide their report 
dated July 28, 2022, expressed 
an unmodified opinion on those 
financial statements.

R e p or t  on  O t h e r  L e g a l  a n d 
Regulatory Requirements

11. As required by ‘the Companies 
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020’ 
(“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of 

sub-section (11) of Section 143 of 
the Act, we give in the Annexure B 
a statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 
to the extent applicable.

12. As required by Section 143(3) of the 
Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained 
a l l  t he  in for mat ion  and 
explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes 
of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books 
of account as required by law 
have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement 
of Profit and Loss and the Cash 
Flow Statement dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement 
with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid 
financial statements comply 
with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of 
the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the written 
representations received from 
the directors as on March 31, 
2023, taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of 
the directors is disqualified as 
on March 31, 2023, from being 
appointed as a director in terms 
of Section 164(2) of the Act. 
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial 
statements of the Company 
and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in Annexure A.

(g) With respect to the other 
matters to be included in the 
Auditors’ Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014 (as amended), in our 
opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to 
the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the 
impact of pending litigations 
on its financial position in its 
financial statements. Refer note 
30 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company was not required to 
recognise a provision as at March 
31, 2023 under the applicable 
law or accounting standards, as 
it does not have any material 
foreseeable losses on long-term 
contracts.  The Company did not 
have any derivative contracts as at 
March 31, 2023.

iii. There has been no delay in 
transferring amounts, required 
to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund 
by the Company during the year.

iv. (a)  The  management  has  
represented that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, as disclosed 

in the notes to the accounts, 
no funds have been advanced 
or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or 
kind of funds) by the Company 
to or in any other persons or 
entities, including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend 
or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Company (“Ultimate 
Benef iciar ies”)  or provide 
any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries (Refer note 34(b)
(viii) to the financial statements);

 (b)  The  management  has 
represented that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, as disclosed 
in the notes to the accounts, no 
funds have been received by the 
Company from any persons or 
entities, including foreign entities 
(“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the 
Company shall, whether, directly 
or indirectly, lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or 
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the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries (Refer note 34(b)
(viii) to the financial statements); 
and

 ( c )  B a s e d  on  s u ch  au d i t 
procedures that we considered 
reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances, nothing has 
come to our notice that has 
caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause 
(a) and (b) contain any material 
misstatement.

v. The dividend declared and paid 
during the year by the Company 
is in compliance with Section 123 
of the Act.

vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 (as amended),  which 
provides for books of account 
to have the feature of audit trail, 

edit log and related  matters in 
the accounting software used by 
the Company, is applicable to the 
Company only with effect from 
financial year beginning April 1, 
2023, the reporting under clause 
(g) of Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
(as amended), is currently not 
applicable.

13. The provisions of Section 197 
read with Schedule V to the Act 
are applicable only to public 
companies. Accordingly, reporting 
under Section 197(16) of the Act is 
not applicable to the Company.

14. As required by Section 378ZG of 
the Act, we give in Annexure C, a 
statement on the matters specified 
in that Section.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Sandeep Chaddha
 Partner
 (Membership No. 096137)

(UDIN: 23096137BGZJMJ4989)
Place: Gurugram
Date : 28th July 2023
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
Referred to in paragraph 12(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the 
Members of Maahi Milk Producer Company Limited on the Financial Statements as of and 
for the year ended March 31, 2023
Report on the Internal Financial Controls 
with reference to Financial Statements 
under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Act.
1. We have audited the internal financial 

controls with reference to financial 
statements of Maahi Milk Producer 
Company Limited (“the Company”) as 
of March 31, 2023, in conjunction with 
our audit of the financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended on that 
date.

Management’s responsibility for Internal 
Financial Controls
2. T h e  C o m p a n y ’s  m a n a g e m e n t 

is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) 
issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These 
responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to 
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of 
its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under 
the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to express an 

opinion on the Company’s internal 

financial controls with reference to 
financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note 
and the Standards on Auditing deemed 
to be prescribed under Section 143(10) 
of the Act to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls, 
both applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls and both issued by 
the ICAI. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements was established 
and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material 
respects. 

4. Our audit  involves  per forming 
procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system with reference 
to financial statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit 
of internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements 
included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements, assessing the 
risk that a material weakness exists, 
and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on 
the auditors’ judgement, including 
the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our 
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audit opinion on the Company’s internal 
financial controls system with reference 
to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls 
with reference to Financial Statements
6. A company’s internal financial controls 

with reference to financial statements 
is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and 
the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company’s internal 
financial controls with reference to 
financial statements includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain 
to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions 
of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance 
with authorisations of management 
and directors of the company; and 
(3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection 
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets 
that could have a material effect on the 

financial statements.
Inherent limitations of Internal Financial 
Controls with reference to Financial 
Statements
7. Because of the inherent limitations of 

internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or 
fraud may occur and not be detected. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of 
the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements to 
future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements 
may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies 
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all 

material respects, an adequate internal 
financial controls system with reference 
to financial statements and such internal 
financial controls with reference to 
financial statements were operating 
effectively as at March 31, 2023, based 
on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Sandeep Chaddha
 Partner
 (Membership No. 096137)

(UDIN: 23096137BGZJMJ4989)
Place: Gurugram
Date : 28th July 2023
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date 
to the Members of Maahi Milk Producer Company Limited on the Financial 
Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

i (a) ( A )  T h e  C o m p a n y  i s 
maintaining proper records 
showing ful l  particulars, 
including quantitative details 
and situation, of property, plant 
and equipment.

  (B) The Company is maintaining 
proper records showing full 
particulars of intangible assets.

(b)The property, plant and 
equipment of the Company 
have been physically verified 
by the management during 
the year and no material 
discrepancies  have been 
noticed on such verification. 
In our opinion, the frequency 
of verification is reasonable.

(c)According to the information 
and explanations given to us 
and the records of the Company 
examined by us, the Company 
does not own any immovable 
properties (Refer note 12 to 
the financial statements). 
Therefore, the provisions of 
clause 3(i)(c) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company.

(d)The Company has chosen cost 
model for its property, plant 
and equipment and intangible 
assets.  Consequently, the 
question of our commenting 

on whether the revaluation is 
based on the valuation by a 
Registered Valuer, or specifying 
the amount of change, if the 
change is 10% or more in the 
aggregate of the net carrying 
value of each class of property, 
plant  and equipment  or 
intangible assets does not arise.

(e)Based on the information 
and explanations furnished 
to us, no proceedings have 
been initiated on (or) are 
pending against the Company 
for holding benami property 
under the Prohibition of 
Benami Property Transactions 
Act, 1988 (as amended in 
2016) (formerly the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) 
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and 
Rules made thereunder, and 
therefore the question of our 
commenting on whether the 
Company has appropriately 
disclosed the details in its 
financial statements does not 
arise.

ii (a) The physical verification of 
inventory has been conducted 
at reasonable intervals by 
the management during the 
year and, in our opinion, the 
coverage and procedure of such 
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verification by management is 
appropriate. The discrepancies 
noticed on physical verification 
of inventory as compared to 
book records were not 10% or 
more in aggregate for each class 
of inventory and have been 
appropriately dealt with in the 
books of account.

 (b)During the year, the Company 
has been sanctioned working 
capital limits in excess of INR 
5 crores, in aggregate, from 
banks on the basis of security 
of current assets. The Company 
has filed quarterly returns or 
statements with such banks, 
where applicable, which are in 
agreement with the unaudited 
books of account.

iii.    The Company has not made any 
investments, granted secured/
unsecured loans/advances 
in nature of loans, or stood 
guarantee, or provided security 
to any parties. Therefore, the 
reporting under clause 3(iii), (iii)
(a), (iii)(b), (iii)(c), (iii)(d), (iii)
(e) and (iii)(f) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company.

iv. The Company has not granted any 
loans or made any investments 
or provided any guarantees or 
security to the parties covered 
under Sections 185 and 186 of 
the Act. Therefore, the reporting 
under clause 3(iv) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company.

v. The Company has not accepted 
any deposits or amounts which 
are deemed to be deposits 
referred in Sections 73, 74, 75 
and 76 of the Act and the Rules 
framed there under to the extent 
notified. 

vi. The Central Government of India 
has not specified the maintenance 
of cost records under sub-    
section (1) of Section 148 of the 
Act for any of the products of the 
Company.

vii. (a)According to the information 
and explanations given to us 
and the records of the Company 
examined by us, in our opinion, 
the Company is regular in 
deposit ing the undisputed 
statutory dues, including goods 
and services tax, provident fund, 
employees’ state insurance, 
income tax, sales tax, service 
tax, duty of customs, duty of 
excise, value added tax, cess and 
other material statutory dues, as 
applicable, with the appropriate 
authorities. 

 (b) According to the information 
and explanations given to us 
and the records of the Company 
examined by us, the particulars of 
statutory dues referred to in sub-
clause (a) as at March 31, 2023 
which have not been deposited 
on account of a dispute, are as 
follows.
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Name of the 
statute

Nature of 
dues

Amount
(INR 

Lakhs)

Amount 
paid under 

protest
(INR 

Lakhs)

Period to which 
the amount 

relates

Forum 
where the 
dispute is 
pending

Income Tax 
Act, 1961 Income Tax 276.03 276.03 FY 2014-15 CIT 

(Appeals)

Income Tax 
Act, 1961

Interest on 
dividend 

distribution 
tax

11.81 11.81 FY 2018-19
Assessing 
Officer - 

CPC

viii. According to the information and 
explanations given to us and the 
records of the Company examined 
by us, there are no transactions in 
the books of account that has 
been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax 
assessments under the Income 
Tax Act, 1961, that has not been 
recorded in the books of account. 

ix. (a) According to the records of the 
Company examined by us and 
the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not 
defaulted in repayment of loans 
or other borrowings or in the 
payment of interest to any lender 
during the year.

 (b) According to the information 
and explanations given to us 
and on the basis of our audit 
procedures, we report that the 
Company has not been declared 
Wilful Defaulter by any bank 
or f inancial  inst itution or 
government or any government 
authority.

 (c) According to the records of the 
Company examined by us and 

the information and explanations 
given to us, the Company has not 
obtained any term loans.

 (d) According to the information 
and explanations given to us, and 
the procedures performed by us, 
and on an overall examination 
of the financial statements of 
the Company, we report that no 
funds raised on short-term basis 
have been used for long-term 
purposes by the Company.

 (e) According to the information 
and explanations given to us and 
procedures performed by us, we 
report that the Company did 
not have any subsidiaries, joint 
ventures or associate companies 
during the year.

 (f) According to the information 
and explanations given to us and 
procedures performed by us, we 
report that the Company did 
not have any subsidiaries, joint 
ventures or associate companies 
during the year.

x. (a) The Company has not raised 
any money by way of initial 
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public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) 
during the year. Accordingly, the 
reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of 
the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.  

 (b) The Company has not made 
any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or 
fully or partially or optionally 
convertible debentures during the 
year. Accordingly, the reporting 
under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company.

xi. (a) During the course of our 
examinat ion of  the books 
and records of the Company, 
carr ied out in accordance 
with the generally accepted 
auditing practices in India, and 
according to the information and 
explanations given to us, we have 
neither come across any instance 
of material fraud by the Company 
or on the Company, noticed or 
reported during the year, nor 
have we been informed of any 
such case by the management.

 (b) During the course of our 
examinat ion of  the books 
and records of the Company, 
carr ied out in accordance 
with the generally accepted 
auditing practices in India, and 
according to the information and 
explanations given to us, a report 
under Section 143(12) of the Act, 
in Form ADT-4, as prescribed 
under Rule 13 of Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014 was not required to be filed 
with the Central Government. 
Accordingly, the reporting under 
clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

 (c) During the course of our 
examinat ion of  the books 
and records of the Company 
carried out in accordance 
with the generally accepted 
auditing practices in India, and 
according to the information 
and explanations given to us, 
and as represented to us by the 
management, no whistle-blower 
complaints have been received 
during the year by the Company. 
Accordingly, the reporting under 
clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

xii. As the Company is not a Nidhi 
Company and the Nidhi Rules, 
2014 are not applicable to it, the 
reporting under clause 3(xii) of 
the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

xiii. The Company has entered into 
transactions with related parties in 
compliance with the provisions of 
Section 188 of the Act. The details 
of such related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial 
statements as required under 
Accounting Standard 18 “Related 
Party Disclosures” specified under 
Section 133 of the Act. Further, 
the Company is not required to 
constitute an Audit Committee 
under Section 177 of the Act and, 
accordingly, to this extent, the 
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reporting under clause 3(xiii) of 
the Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

xiv. (a) In our opinion and according 
to  t he  in for mat ion  and 
explanation given to us, the 
Company has an internal audit 
system commensurate with the 
size and nature of its business.

 (b) The reports of the Internal 
Auditor for the period under 
audit have been considered by 
us.

xv. The Company has not entered 
into any non-cash transactions 
with its directors or persons 
connected with him. Accordingly, 
the reporting on compliance with 
the provisions of Section 192 of 
the Act under clause 3(xv) of the 
Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is not required 
to be registered under Section 
45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India  Act, 1934. Accordingly, 
the reporting under clause 
3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

 (b) The Company has not 
conduc te d  non-b an k ing 
financial/housing finance 
activities during the year. 
Accordingly, the reporting 
under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the 
Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

 (c)  The Company is not a Core 
Investment Company (CIC) as 
defined in the regulations made 
by the Reserve Bank of India. 
Accordingly, the reporting 

under clause 3(xvi)(c) of the 
Order is not applicable to the 
Company.

 (d) Based on the information and 
explanations provided by the 
management of the Company, 
the Group (as defined in the 
Core Investment Companies 
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 
2016) does not have any 
CICs, which are part of the 
Group. We have not, however, 
separately evaluated whether 
the information provided by 
the management is accurate 
and complete. Accordingly, 
the reporting under clause 
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

xvii. The Company has not incurred 
any cash losses in the financial 
year or in the immediately  
preceding financial year.

xviii. There has been no resignation 
of the statutory auditors during 
the year and accordingly the 
reporting under clause 3(xviii) 
is not applicable.

xix. According to the information 
and explanations given to us 
and on the basis of the financial 
ratios (Also refer note 34(a) 
to the financial statements), 
ageing and expected dates of 
realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, 
other information accompanying 
the financial statements, our 
knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and management plans 
and based on our examination 
of the evidence supporting the 
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assumptions, nothing has come 
to our attention, which causes 
us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date 
of the audit report that Company 
is not capable of meeting its 
liabilities existing at the date of 
Balance Sheet as and when they 
fall due within a period of one 
year from the Balance Sheet date. 
We, however, state that this is 
not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company. We 
further state that our reporting 
is based on the facts up to the 
date of the audit report and we 
neither give any guarantee nor 
any assurance that all liabilities 
falling due within a period of 

one year from the Balance Sheet 
date will get discharged by the 
Company as and when they fall 
due.

xx. As at Balance Sheet date, the 
Company does not have any 
amount remaining unspent 
under Section 135(5) of the Act.  
Accordingly, reporting under 
clause 3(xx) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

xxi. The reporting under clause 
3(xxi) of the Order is not 
applicable in respect of audit of 
Standalone Financial Statements. 
Accordingly, no comment in 
respect of the said clause has 
been included in this report.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Sandeep Chaddha
 Partner
 (Membership No. 096137)

(UDIN: 23096137BGZJMJ4989)
Place: Gurugram
Date : 28th July 2023
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ANNEXURE "C" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
Referred to in paragraph 14 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date 
to the Members of Maahi Milk Producer Company Limited on the Financial 
Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

a) The amount of debts due from 
sale of goods and services are 
as disclosed in note 16 to the 
financial statements. According 
t o  t h e  i n f o r m a t i o n  a n d 
explanations given to us, no debts 
other than those disclosed in note 
16 to the financial statements 
are considered as doubtful of 
recovery. 

b) According to the information 
and explanations given to us, the 
Company does not have cash 
on hand and does not hold any 
investment securities as at March 
31, 2023. 

c) The details of assets and liabilities 
as at March 31, 2023 are as per 
the financial statements of the 
Company as at and for the year 
ended March 31, 2023.

d) In respect of the applicable 
provisions of Chapter XXIA 
of the Act, the Company has 
carried out transactions in 

relation to benefits to members, 
transferability of shares and 
attendant rights,  general and 
other reserves during the year. 
In our opinion and according to 
the information and explanations 
given to us, we have not noticed 
any transaction carried out by the 
Company in relation to the above, 
which appears to be contrary 
to the applicable provisions of 
Chapter XXIA of the Act.

e) According to the information 
and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not granted any 
loan to its directors.

f) According to the information 
and explanations given to us, 
the Company has not given 
any donations or subscriptions 
during the year.

g) According to the information and 
explanations given to us, there are 
no other matters.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Sandeep Chaddha
 Partner
 (Membership No. 096137)

(UDIN: 23096137BGZJMJ4989)
Place: Gurugram
Date : 28th July 2023
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Price Waterhouse Maahi Milk Producer Company Limited
Chartered Accountants LLP Mahendrasinh Jadeja Vishvasbhai Dodiya Dr. Sanjaykumar Govani
Firm Registration Director Director Chief Executive & Director
No: 012754N/N500016 (DIN: 07566111) (DIN: 07885716) (DIN: 08814861)

Sandeep Chaddha Vinay Kumar Inani  Sanjay Talati
Partner Sr. Manager - Accounts & Finance Company Secretary
Membership No: 096137   Membership No.A27144
Place: Gurugram Place: Rajkot
Date: 28th July, 2023 Date: 28th July, 2023

MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
CIN : U01403GJ2012PTC070646
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

 Particulars Note No. As at As at 
     March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ funds
Share capital   3  4,159.31  3,681.63
Reserves and surplus 4  12,796.77  11,225.09
       16,956.08   14,906.72
Deferred grant 5  375.69  567.93
Non - current liabilities
Other long-term liabilities 6   3,061.04  2,674.09
Long - term provisions 7  21.17  13.45
      3,082.21  2,687.54
Current liabilities
Short - term borrowings 8  6,953.17  8,477.93
Trade payables 9
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  473.48  387.47
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises   9,424.01  7,901.06
   and small enterprises  
Other current liabilities 10  888.31  856.92
Short - term provisions 11  263.93  147.20
       18,002.90  17,770.58
TOTAL    38,416.88  35,932.77
ASSETS
Non - current assets
    Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets
    Property, Plant and Equipment 12  2,111.31  2,566.34
    Intangible assets 12 - -
    Capital work-in-progress 12 - 48.78
Deferred tax assets (net) 13 136.87 77.45
Long - term loans and advances 14 731.83 510.54
     2,980.01  3,203.11
Current assets
Inventories  15 15,222.09 9,183.51
Trade receivables 16 3,263.64 419.49
Cash and Bank Balance 17 16,469.29 22,832.06
Short - term loans and advances 18 92.60  129.56
Other current assets 19 389.25 165.04
     35,436.87 32,729.66
TOTAL    38,416.88  35,932.77
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MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
CIN : U01403GJ2012PTC070646
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No. For the Year ended  For the Year ended
  March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Income

Revenue from operations 20 1,73,467.21 1,52,656.02

Other income 21 1,235.36 750.59

Total income  1,74,702.57 1,53,406.61

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 22 76,589.27 63,189.06

Purchases of stock-in-trade 23 80,900.98 70,361.72

Changes in inventories of finished goods  24 (1,018.99) 3,317.24

Employee benefits expense 25 2,440.93 2,090.87

Finance costs 26 126.45 152.33

Depreciation and amortization expense 27 420.78 446.74

Other expenses 28 13,171.46 10,980.46

Total expenses  1,72,630.88 1,50,538.42

PROFIT BEFORE TAX   2,071.69  2,868.19

Tax expense:

Current tax   578.00 737.56

Deferred tax   (59.42)  (11.66)

     518.58 725.90

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  1,553.11   2,142.29
Earnings per Equity share [(Nominal value per share:
INR 100) (March 31, 2022: INR 100)] 29

Basic    41.70 64.26

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Price Waterhouse Maahi Milk Producer Company Limited
Chartered Accountants LLP Mahendrasinh Jadeja Vishvasbhai Dodiya Dr. Sanjaykumar Govani
Firm Registration Director Director Chief Executive & Director
No: 012754N/N500016 (DIN: 07566111) (DIN: 07885716) (DIN: 08814861)

Sandeep Chaddha Vinay Kumar Inani  Sanjay Talati
Partner Sr. Manager - Accounts & Finance Company Secretary
Membership No: 096137   Membership No.A27144

Place: Gurugram Place: Rajkot
Date: 28th July, 2023 Date: 28th July, 2023
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MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
CIN : U01403GJ2012PTC070646
CASHFLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
  Particulars Note For the year ended  For the year ended

   No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:   
  Profit before tax  2,071.69 2,868.19
 Adjustments for : 
  Depreciation and amortization expense 27  420.78   446.74
  Liabilities no longer required written back 21  (30.19)  (35.31)
  Loss / (Profit) on sale of property, plant and equipment(net) 21,28   157.56   (1.68)
  Write back of provision for doubtful debts 21  -     (0.27)
  Interest income 21  (1,091.28)  (666.90)
  Finance costs 26  121.35   149.56
 Operating profit before working capital changes    1,649.91   2,760.33
 Changes in working capital:
  (Increase)/Decrease in long term loans and advances  (14.79) 5.33
  (Increase)/Decrease in short term loans and advances  36.96  (22.69)
  (Increase)/Decrease in inventories  (6,038.58) 4,668.72
  (Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables  (2,844.15) (60.37)
  Increase/(Decrease) in other long-term liabilities  386.95  433.88
  Increase/(Decrease) in long term provision  7.72  (61.01)
  Increase/(Decrease) in short term provision   116.73   38.91
  Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables   1,639.15   872.63
  Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities   52.82   209.67
 Cash (used in)/generated from operations   (5,007.28)  8,845.40
 Taxes paid (net of refunds)  (784.50) (602.00)
 Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (A) (5,791.78)  8,243.40
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:   
 Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment   (304.06)  (86.63)
 Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment    29.76   58.27
 Proceeds from/(investment in) other bank balances    5,117.42  (7,173.65)
 Interest received   867.07   625.45
 Net cash (used in)/ generated from investing activities  (B) 5,710.19  (6,576.56)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:  
 Proceeds from issue of Equity shares (including securities premium)  790.78   370.80 
 Dividend paid  (307.73)  (288.95)
 Finance costs paid   (122.05)  (149.62)
 Repayment of short-term borrowings   (1,524.76)  (195.69)
 Net cash used in financing activities  (C)  (1,163.76)  (263.46)
 Net decrease in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  (1,245.35) 1,403.38
 Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year   8,958.34  7,554.96
 Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year  7,712.99  8,958.34
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of: 17
 Balances with banks:
 - In current accounts    37.99   4,698.34
 - Demand deposits (less than 3 months maturity)   7,675.00   4,260.00
     7,712.99  8,958.34 
Notes:
i) The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘indirect method’ as set out in Accounting Standard 3 - Cash Flow Statements.
ii) Figures in bracket indicates cash outflows.
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.
  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Price Waterhouse Maahi Milk Producer Company Limited
Chartered Accountants LLP Mahendrasinh Jadeja Vishvasbhai Dodiya Dr. Sanjaykumar Govani
Firm Registration Director Director Chief Executive & Director
No: 012754N/N500016 (DIN: 07566111) (DIN: 07885716) (DIN: 08814861)

Sandeep Chaddha Vinay Kumar Inani  Sanjay Talati
Partner Sr. Manager - Accounts & Finance Company Secretary
Membership No: 096137   Membership No.A27144
Place: Gurugram Place: Rajkot
Date: 28th July, 2023 Date: 28th July, 2023
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MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
CIN : U01403GJ2012PTC070646

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

1. General information
 Maahi Milk Producer Company 

Limited (the “”Company”) was 
incorporated on June 7, 2012 
under Part IXA of the Companies 
Act, 1956. The Company procures 
milk directly from milk producers 
through ‘Milk Pooling Points(MPP)’ 
in the villages of Gujarat. The 
Company trades in Raw Milk and 
also processes the milk procured 
for the manufacture of Polypack 
Milk (PPM), Butter Milk, Ghee, 
Dahi, Shrikhand, Paneer, Flavoured 
Milk, Lassi, Skimmed Milk Powder, 
White Butter. The Company also 
manufactures Cattle Feed and 
Mineral Mixtures. 

2. S u m m a r y  o f  s i g n i f i c a n t 
accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation
These financial statements have 
been prepared in accordance with 
the generally accepted accounting 
principles in India under the 
historical cost convention on 
accrual basis. These financial 
statements have been prepared 
to comply in all material aspects 
with the accounting standards 
notified under the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2021, specified under Section 133 
and other relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013.
All assets and liabilities have been 
classified as current or non-current 
as per the Company’s operating 
cycle and other criteria set out in 
the Schedule III (Division I) to the 

Companies Act, 2013. Based on 
the nature of products and the time 
between the acquisition of assets 
for processing and their realisation 
in cash and cash equivalents, the 
Company has ascertained its 
operating cycle as 12 months for 
the purpose of current - non-
current classification of assets and 
liabilities.

2.2 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are 
stated at cost, net of accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Cost 
comprises of the purchase price 
including import duties and non-
refundable taxes, and directly 
attributable expenses incurred to 
bring the asset to the location and 
condition necessary for it to be 
capable of being operated in the 
manner intended by management. 
Subsequent costs  related to 
an item of property, plant and 
equipment are recognised in the 
carrying amount of the item if the 
recognition criteria are met.
An item of property, plant and 
equipment is derecognised on 
disposal  or when no future 
economic benefits are expected 
from its use or disposal. The gain 
or loss arising on derecognition 
is recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

2.3 Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on a 
pro-rata basis on the straight-
line method over the estimated 
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useful life of the assets, based on 
technical evaluation carried out by 
management’s expert taking into 
account the nature of the assets, 
their estimated period of use and 
the operating conditions. The 
depreciation charge for each period 
is recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss, unless it is included 
in the carrying amount of any other 
asset. The useful life, residual value 
and the depreciation method are 
reviewed atleast at each financial 
year end. If the expectations 
differ from previous estimates, 
the changes are accounted for 
prospectively as a change in 
accounting estimate.
The estimates of useful life of 
property, plant and equipment are 
as follows:

Assets Useful 
life as per 

Schedule II 
(in years)

Management 
estimate of 
useful life 
(in years)

Buildings 20 20
Plant and 

Machinery
3-10 3-10

Office 
equipments

5 5

Furniture 
and fixtures

10 10

Computers 3 3

2.4 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at 
acquisition cost, net of accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated 
i mp ai r me nt  l o ss e s ,  i f  any. 
Intangible assets are amortised 
on a straight-line basis over their 
estimated useful life. A rebuttable 

presumption that the useful life 
of an intangible asset will not 
exceed 10 years from the date 
when the asset is available for use 
is considered by the management. 
The amortisation period and the 
amortisation method are reviewed 
atleast at each financial year end. 
If the expected useful life of the 
asset is significantly different from 
previous estimates, the amortisation 
period is changed accordingly.
Gains or losses arising from 
the retirement or disposal of an 
intangible asset are determined 
as the difference between the 
net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset and 
recognised as income or expense 
in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. The estimated useful life of 
intangible assets are as follows:

Assets Useful 
life as per 

Schedule II 
(in years)

Management 
estimate of 
useful life 
(in years)

Computer 
Software

NA 3

2.5 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs include interest, 
other costs incurred in connection 
with borrowing and exchange 
differences arising from foreign 
currency borrowings to the 
extent that they are regarded as 
an adjustment to the interest cost. 
General and specific borrowing 
costs directly attributable to 
the acquisition, construction or 
production of qualifying assets, 
which are assets that necessarily 
take a substantial period of time 
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to get ready for their intended use 
or sale, are added to the cost of 
those assets, until such time as the 
assets are substantially ready for 
their intended use or sale. All other 
borrowing costs are recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss 
in the period in which they are 
incurred.

2.6 Impairment of assets
Assessment is done at each Balance 
Sheet date as to whether there is any 
indication that an asset (tangible 
and intangible) may be impaired. 
If any such indication exists, an 
estimate of the recoverable amount 
of the asset/cash generating unit 
(“CGU”) is made. Recoverable 
amount is higher of an asset’s or 
CGU’s net selling price and its 
value in use. Value in use is the 
present value of estimated future 
cash flows expected to arise from 
the continuing use of an asset 
and from its disposal at the end 
of its useful life. For the purpose 
of assessing impairment, the 
recoverable amount is determined 
for an individual asset, unless the 
asset does not generate cash inflows 
that are largely independent of 
those from other assets or groups 
of assets. The smallest identifiable 
group of assets that generates cash 
inflows from continuing use that 
are largely independent of the cash 
inflows from other assets or groups 
of assets, is considered as a CGU. 
An asset or CGU whose carrying 
value exceeds its recoverable 
amount is considered impaired and 
is written down to its recoverable 
amount. Assessment is also done 

at each Balance Sheet date as to 
whether there is any indication that 
an impairment loss recognised for 
an asset in prior accounting periods 
may no longer exist or may have 
decreased. An impairment loss 
is reversed to the extent that the 
asset’s carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined if no 
impairment loss had previously 
been recognised.

2.7 Inventories
 Inventories are stated at lower 

of cost and net realisable value. 
Cost is determined using the 
weighted average method. The 
cost of finished goods comprises 
raw materials, direct labour, other 
direct costs, related production 
overheads and other cost incurred 
in bringing the inventories to their 
present location and condition. Net 
realisable value is the estimated 
selling price in the ordinary course 
of business, less the estimated costs 
of completion and the estimated 
costs necessary to make the sale.  

2.8 Revenue recognition
 Sale of goods
 Sales are recognised when the 

significant risks and rewards 
of ownership in the goods are 
transferred to the buyer as per 
the terms of the contract, which 
coincides with the delivery of goods 
and are recognised net of trade 
discounts, rebates and goods and 
services tax (GST).

 Other income
 Interest income is recognised on a 

time proportion basis taking into 
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account the amount outstanding 
and the rate applicable.

2.9 Employee benefits
 Provident Fund

Contribution towards provident 
fund for employees is made to 
the regulatory authorities, where 
the Company has no further 
obligations. Such benefits are 
classified as defined contribution 
schemes as the Company does not 
carry any further obligations, apart 
from the contributions made on a 
monthly basis.

 Gratuity
The Company provides for gratuity, 
a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity 
Plan”) covering eligible employees 
in accordance with the Payment of 
Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity 
Plan provides a lump sum payment 
to vested employees at retirement, 
death, incapacitation or termination 
of employment, of an amount based 
on the respective employee’s salary 
and the tenure of employment. The 
Company’s liability is actuarially 
determined (using the Projected 
Unit Credit method) at the end of 
each year. Actuarial losses/gains 
are recognised in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss in the year in 
which they arise. The Gratuity 
Plan is funded and is administered 
by the Life Insurance Corporation 
of India (LIC). The contributions 
made to the LIC are recognised 
as plan assets. The defined benefit 
obligation recognised in the Balance 
Sheet represents the present value of 
the defined benefit obligation as 
reduced by the fair value of plan 
assets.

Compensated absences
Ac c u mu l ate d  c omp e ns ate d 
absences, which are expected to 
be availed or encashed within 12 
months from the end of the year end 
are treated as short-term employee 
benefits. The obligation towards the 
same is measured at the expected 
cost of accumulating compensated 
absences as the additional amount 
expected to be paid as a result of 
the unused entitlement as at the 
year end.
Ac c u mu l ate d  c omp e ns ate d 
absences, which are expected to 
be availed or encashed beyond 12 
months from the end of the year are 
treated as other long-term employee 
benefits. The Company’s liability is 
actuarially determined (using the 
Projected Unit Credit method) 
at the end of each year. Actuarial 
losses/gains are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the 
year in which they arise.
The accumulated compensated 
absences liability is funded and is 
administered by the Life Insurance 
Corporation of India (LIC). The 
contributions made to the LIC 
are recognised as plan assets. 
The accumulated compensated 
absences liability recognised in 
the Balance Sheet represents the 
present value of the accumulated 
compensated absences liability as 
reduced by the fair value of plan 
assets.

2.10 Current and deferred tax
Tax expense for the period, 
comprising current tax and 
deferred tax, are included in the 
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determination of the net profit 
or loss for the period. Current 
tax is measured at the amount 
expected to be paid to the tax 
authorities in accordance with 
the prevailing taxation laws. 
 
Deferred tax is recognised for all the 
timing differences, subject to the 
consideration of prudence in respect 
of deferred tax assets. Deferred tax 
assets are recognised and carried 
forward only to the extent that 
there is a reasonable certainty 
(except where the Company has 
unabsorbed depreciation or carry 
forward losses under tax laws) that 
sufficient future taxable income 
will be available against which 
such deferred tax assets can be 
realised. Deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are measured using the 
tax rates and tax laws that have 
been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the Balance Sheet date. 
 
In situations, where the Company 
has unabsorbed depreciation or 
carry forward losses under tax laws, 
all deferred tax assets are recognised 
only to the extent that there is virtual 
certainty supported by convincing 
evidence that they can be realised 
against future taxable profits. 
At each Balance Sheet date, the 
Company re-assesses unrecognised 
deferred tax  assets ,  i f  any.  
 
Current tax assets and current tax 
liabilities are offset when there is a 
legally enforceable right to set off 
the recognised amounts and there 
is an intention to settle the asset and 
the liability on a net basis. Deferred 

tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 
are offset when there is a legally 
enforceable right to set off assets 
against liabilities representing 
current tax and where the deferred 
tax assets and the deferred tax 
liabilities relate to taxes on income 
levied by the same governing 
taxation laws.

2.11 Provisions and Contingent  
   liabilities
Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when 
there is a present obligation as a 
result of a past event, it is probable 
that an outf low of resources 
embodying economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation 
and there is a reliable estimate 
of the amount of the obligation. 
Provisions are measured at the 
best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the present 
obligation at the Balance sheet 
date and are not discounted to its 
present value.
Contingent liabilities
C o n t i n g e n t  l i a b i l i t i e s  a r e 
disclosed when there is a possible 
obligation arising from past events, 
the existence of which will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the company 
or a present obligation that arises 
from past events where it is either 
not probable that an outflow of 
resources will be required to settle 
or a reliable estimate of the amount 
cannot be made.
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2.12 Use of estimates
The preparation of the financial 
statements in conformity with 
the generally accepted accounting 
principles in India requires the 
management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the 
reported amount of assets and 
liabilities as of the Balance Sheet 
date, reported amount of revenue 
and expenses for the year and 
disclosure of contingent liabilities 
as of the Balance Sheet date. The 
estimates and assumptions used in 
these financial statements are based 
on management’s evaluation of the 
relevant facts and circumstances 
as of the date of the financial 
statements. The actual results could 
differ from these estimates and the 
difference between actual results 
and estimates are recognised in 
the period in which the results are 
known/materialise.

2.13 Leases
 Operating leases
 Leases in which a significant portion 

of the risks and rewards of ownership 
are retained by the lessor are classified 
as operating leases. Payments made 
under operating leases are charged to 
the Statement of Profit and Loss on a 
straight-line basis over the period of 
the lease.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents
 In the Cash Flow Statement, cash 

and cash equivalents include cash 
on hand, demand deposits with 
banks, other short-term highly liquid 
investments with original maturities 
of 3 months or less.

2.15 Earnings per sharr
 Basic earnings per share is calculated 

by dividing the net profit or loss for 
the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period. For the purpose of 
calculating diluted earnings per share, 
the net profit or loss for the period 
attributable to equity shareholders 
and the weighted average number 
of shares outstanding during the 
period is adjusted for the effects of 
all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.16 Government grants
 Grants from the government are 

recognised when there is a reasonable 
assurance that the grant will be 
received and the Company will 
comply with all attached conditions

 Government grants relating to 
income are deferred and recognised 
in the profit or loss over the period 
necessary to match them with the 
costs that they are intended to 
compensate and presented within 
other income.

 Government grants related to the 
purchase of property, plant and 
equipment are treated as deferred 
grant which is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss on a 
systematic and rational basis over the 
useful life of the asset, i.e., depreciation 
charge on assets procured from 
such grants is appropriated from 
deferred grant and recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss by way 
of reduced depreciation charge.
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   As at As at
   March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022
3. Share Capital
 Authorised
 50,00,000 (March 31, 2022: 50,00,000)
 Equity shares of INR 100 each 5,000.00 5,000.00

 Issued
 41,59,317 (March 31, 2022: 36,81,635)
 Equity shares of INR 100 each 4,159.31 3,681.63
 Subscribed and fully paid up
 41,59,317 (March 31, 2022: 36,81,635)
 Equity shares of INR 100 each 4,159.31 3,681.63

 (i) Reconciliation of number of shares As at March 31, 2023
  Particulars Number of shares Amount
  Equity shares:
  Balance as at the beginning of the year 36,81,635 3,681.63
  Add: Shares issued during the year 6,75,966 675.96
  Less: Shares cancelled/surrendered during the year (1,98,284) (198.28)
  Balance as at the end of the year 41,59,317 4,159.31

   As at March 31, 2022
  Particulars Number of shares Amount
  Equity shares:
  Balance as at the beginning of the year  35,42,402  3,542.40
  Add: Shares issued during the year  5,42,014  542.01
  Less: Shares cancelled/surrendered during the year  (4,02,781)  (402.78)
  Balance as at the end of the year  36,81,635  3,681.63

(ii) Rights and restrictions attached to Equity shares

  The Company has only one class of Equity shares having a par value of INR 100 per 
share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. Members are entitled to 
limited return and bonus in accordance with Articles of Association of the Company. 
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the 
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

(iii) None of the members holds 5% or more of the share capital of the Company.

(iv) No share has been issued for a consideration other than cash or by way of bonus shares 
during the year or 5 years immediately preceeding the financial year.

MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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(v) Details of Share holding of Promoters:
   As at March 31, 2023
  Particulars Number of shares Percentage
 Shri Mahendrasinh Mahipatsinh Jadeja 162 0.0039%
 Shri Rambhai Ukabhai Ram* Not Applicable 0.0000%
 Shri Mathurbhai Rambhai Raiyani 19 0.0005%
 Shri Lalabhai Algotar* Not Applicable 0.0000%
 Smt. Shobhanaben Dineshbhai Patoriya 224 0.0054%
 Shri Vishvasbhai Ramsingbhai Dodiya 38 0.0009%
 Shri Nagabhai Lakhabhai Odedara 48 0.0012%
 Shri Goganbhai Arashibhai Kandoriya 61 0.0015%
 Shri Vijaybhai Arabhambhai Odedara 101 0.0024%
 Smt. Sushilaben Rajendrakumar Pandya 27 0.0006%
 Shri Sharadkumar Mohanlal Mota** 343 0.0082%
 Shri Rambhai Bavakubhai Budhas** 183 0.0044%
 Smt. Nilamben Makabhai Golitar** 17 0.0004%
* Ceases to be director of the Company w.e.f. September 2, 2022.
** Appointed as directors of the Company w.e.f. September 2, 2022.
   As at March 31, 2022
  Particulars Number of shares Percentage
 Shri Mahendrasinh Mahipatsinh Jadeja 162 0.0044%
 Shri Rambhai Ukabhai Ram 158 0.0043%
 Shri Mathurbhai Rambhai Raiyani 19 0.0005%
 Shri Lalabhai Algotar 93 0.0025%
 Smt. Shobhanaben Dineshbhai Patoriya 224 0.0061%
 Shri Vishvasbhai Ramsingbhai Dodiya 38 0.0010%
 Shri Mahendrabhai Bhupatbhai Goletar* Not Applicable 0.0000%
 Shri Nagabhai Lakhabhai Odedara 48 0.0013%
 Shri Goganbhai Arashibhai Kandoriya 61 0.0017%
 Shri Arvindbhai Lakhmanbhai Makvana** Not Applicable 0.0000%
 Shri Vijaybhai Arabhambhai Odedara# 101 0.0027%
 Smt. Sushilaben Rajendrakumar Pandya# 27 0.0007%
* Ceases to be director of the Company w.e.f. September 7, 2021.
** Ceases to be director of the Company w.e.f. January 8, 2022.
# Appointed as director of the Company w.e.f. September 7, 2021.

4. Reserves and surplus 
    As at As at
    March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

 (a) General Reserve
  Balance as at the beginning of the year 4,129.10 4,029.10
  Add: Transferred from surplus in Statement of 
  Profit and Loss 100.00 100.00     
  Balance as at the end of the year  4,229.10 4,129.10         

MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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    As at As at
    March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
 (b)  Securities Premium Account
  Balance as at the beginning of the year  1,587.58  1,356.01
  Add: Premium on shares issued during the year 337.98 271.01
  Less: Premiuim paid on cancellation/surrender
  of shares during the year  24.88  39.44     
  Balance as at the end of the year  1,900.68  1,587.58     
 (c) Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
  Balance as at the beginning of the year 5,508.41 3,749.51
  Add: Profit for the year 1,553.11  2,142.29
  Less: Final limited return (dividend) to members
           for the year ended March 31, 2022
           (INR 8 per share) 294.53 283.39
  Less: Transfer to General Reserve 100.00 100.00
     

  Balance as at the end of the year    6,666.99  5,508.41
     

     12,796.77  11,225.09
     5. Deferred grant
 (a) Balance as at the beginning of the year 567.93  709.94
 (b) Less: Depreciation on assets acquired from
  capital grant (Refer note 12(a)) 110.60 137.70
 (c) Less: Loss on write-off of property,
  plant and equipment 81.64 4.31     
    375.69 567.93
     
6. Other long-term liabilities
 (a) Trade / security deposits received 3,061.04 2,674.09     
     3,061.04 2,674.09     
7. Long term provisions
 Provision for employee benefits:
 (a) Provision for gratuity (Refer note 33)  21.17  13.45     
     21.17  13.45
     8. Short term borrowings
 From Banks
 (a) Secured loans
  (i) Working capital loans repayable on demand
        (refer note (i) and (ii) below) 5,478.17 4,147.93
  (ii) Working capital loans repayable other than
        demand (refer note (iii) below) - 2,830.00
 (b) Unsecured loans
  (i) Working capital loan (refer note (iv) below) 1,475.00  1,500.00     
    6,953.17 8,477.93
     

MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Note:
(i) The Company has taken working capital loan in the nature of bank overdraft facility from Axis Bank for 

a period of 12 months which is repayable on demand. The balance outstanding at the year end was INR 
4,009.69 (March 31, 2022: INR 4,147.89). During the current year, the rate of interest was in the range 
of 4.06% to 5.31% (March 31, 2022: interest was in the range of 3.95% to 4.15%). The loan is secured 
against fixed deposits of the Company with the bank (Refer note 17).

(ii) The Company has taken cash credit facility from HDFC Bank which is repayable on demand. The 
applicable rate of interest is linked with T-bill. The balance outstanding at the year end was INR 1,468.48  
(March 31, 2022: INR 0.04). During the current year, the rate of interest was in the range of 6.30% to 
7.72% (March 31, 2022: interest was in the range of 6.30% to 7.45%). The loan is secured by hypothecation 
of inventories and trade receivables of the Company (Refer notes 15 and 16).

(iii) The Company has taken working capital demand loan from HDFC Bank. The loan can be taken for a 
maximum period of upto 180 days. The balance outstanding at the year end was INR Nil (March 31, 2022: 
INR 2,830.00). During the current year, the rate of interest ranges from 5.00% to 6.27% (March 31, 2022: 
interest rate was in the range of 5.20% to 5.80%). The loan is secured by hypothecation of inventories 
and trade receivables of the Company (Refer notes 15 and 16).

(iv) The Company has taken an unsecured one time short-term facility/line of credit for short term loan 
(LOCSTL) as working capital loan from ICICI Bank for a period of upto 90 days or upto the period of 
facility, whichever is earlier. The balance outstanding at the year end was INR 1,475.00 (March 31, 2022: 
INR 1,500.00). During the current year, the rate of interest was in the range of 5.00% to 8.00% (March 
31, 2022:  the interst rate was in the range of 5.00% to 5.20%).

    As at As at
    March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
9. Trade payables
 a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
  and small enterprises (Refer note below) 473.48 387.47
 b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
  than micro enterprises and small enterprises  9,424.01 7,901.06
     

    9,897.49  8,288.53
     

Trade payable ageing schedule 
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as at March 31, 2023
  Unbilled Not due Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
    1 year   3 years
Undisputed Dues
 - MSME  –     464.03   1.52   5.10   1.62   1.21   473.48
 - Others –     9,295.60   107.64   16.70   4.07  – 9,424.01
Disputed Dues
 - MSME – – – – – – –
 - Others – – – – – – –
         -     9,759.63   109.16   21.80   5.69   1.21   9,897.49

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment as at March 31, 2022
  Unbilled Not due Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
    1 year   3 years
Undisputed Dues
 - MSME –     281.24   104.40   0.77   1.06   -     387.47
 - Others  -     7,774.69   109.43   4.83   1.13   10.98   7,901.06
Disputed Dues
 - MSME – – – – – – –
 - Others – – – – – – –
         -     8,055.93   213.83   5.60   2.19   10.98   8,288.53

MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Note: Dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises

The details of dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME) as defined under Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (‘MSMED Act’) and disclosures pursuant to the MSMED 
Act are as follows:
Particular As at March 

31, 2023
As at March 

31, 2022

Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and 
remaining unpaid as at year end

 473.48  387.47 

Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining 
unpaid as at year end

 3.20 –

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond 
the appointed day during the year

– –

Interest paid, under Section 16 of the MSMED Act, to suppliers registered 
under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

– –

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of the MSMED Act, to suppliers 
registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

– –

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment 
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but 
without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act.

– –

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year – –

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 
years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the 
small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure 
under Section 23 of the MSMED Act.

– –

 Particular  As at As at
    March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
10. Other current liabilities
 (a) Capital creditors  42.00   49.53
 (b) Interest accrued but not due  3.53   4.23
 (c) Statutory dues payable  165.36   182.88
 (d) Advances from customers 399.43   342.37
 (e) Unclaimed/unpaid dividends 6.30   19.50
 (f) Application money received for allotment 
  of securities and due for refund – 1.18
 (g) Employee benefits payable  269.14   249.44
 (h) Other liabilities 2.55   7.79     
     888.31   856.92
     

11. Short term provisions
 Provision for employee benefits:
 (a) Provision for compensated absences  263.93   147.20     
     263.93   147.20
     

MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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12. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Particulars

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation and 
amortisation Net Block

As at 
April 1,

2022

 Addi-
tions 

during 
the year 

 Disposals 
during 

the year

As at 
March 31, 

2023

As at 
April 1,

2022

Charge 
for the 

year

 
Disposals 

during 
the year 

As at 
March 31, 

2023

As at 
March 31, 

2023

As at 
March 31, 

2022

Property, plant and  
equipment
Buildings  201.19  -    1.35  199.84  63.68  8.28  1.35  70.61  129.23  137.51 

Plant & machinery 6,371.96 264.50  943.80 5,692.66 4,007.55 498.45 676.93 3,829.07 1,863.59 2,364.41 
Office Euipments  140.40  27.80  4.27  163.93  120.92  6.36  4.04  123.24  40.69  19.48 

Furniture and fixtures  181.19  35.26  21.96  194.49  170.69  5.18  20.10  155.77  38.72  10.50 
Computers  757.86  17.75  47.79  727.82  723.42  13.11  47.79  688.74  39.08  34.44 

Intangible assets
Computer Software  195.55  -    0.59  194.96  195.55  -    0.59  194.96  -    -   
Total 7,848.15 345.31 1,019.76 7,173.70 5,281.81 531.38 750.80 5,062.39 2,111.31 2,566.34 
Capital work-in-progress  48.78 (48.78)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    48.78 

Particulars

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation and 
amortisation Net Block

As at 
April 1,

2021

 Addi-
tions 

during 
the year 

 Dis-
posals 
during 

the year

As at 
March 31, 

2022

As at 
April 1,

2021

Charge 
for the 

year

 
Disposals 

during 
the year 

As at 
March 31, 

2022

As at 
March 31, 

2022

As at 
March 31, 

2021

Property, plant and  
equipment
Buildings  201.52  -    0.33  201.19  55.63  8.38  0.33  63.68  137.51  145.89 

Plant & machinery 6,492.53  19.57  140.14 6,371.96 3,573.34 518.39  84.18 4,007.55 2,364.41 2,919.19 
Office Euipments  142.82  10.87  13.29  140.40  81.42  48.19  8.69  120.92  19.48  61.40 

Furniture and fixtures  183.40  1.35  3.56  181.19  170.94  2.97  3.22  170.69  10.50  12.46 
Computers  730.60  37.77  10.51  757.86  727.42  6.51  10.51  723.42  34.44  3.18 

Intangible assets
Computer Software  195.90  -    0.35  195.55  195.90  -    0.35  195.55  -    -   
Total 7,946.77  69.56  168.18  7,848.15  4,804.65 584.44  107.28 5,281.81 2,566.34 3,142.12 
Capital work-in-progress  -    48.78  -    48.78  -    -    -    -    48.78  -   
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12(a) The details of assets acquired out of capital grant and included in the note 12 are given below:

12(b) Additional regulatory information required by Schedule III
 Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)
 (i) CWIP ageing schedule

CWIP
Amount in CWIP for a period of, as on March 31, 2023

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Project in Progress – – – – –
Projects temporarily suspended – – – – –

MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation and 
amortisation Net Block

As at 
April 1,

2022

 Addi-
tions 

during 
the year 

 Dis-
posals 
during 

the year

As at 
March 31, 

2023

As at 
April 1,

2022

Charge 
for the 

year

 
Disposals 

during 
the year 

As at 
March 31, 

2023

As at 
March 31, 

2023

As at 
March 31, 

2022

Property, plant and  
equipment
Buildings  69.35 – –  69.35  21.58  3.23 –  24.81  44.54  47.76 

Plant & machinery 1,553.59 –  235.94 1,317.65 1,036.79 107.08  154.33  989.54  328.11  516.80 
Office Euipments  48.15 –  0.60  47.55  45.79 –  0.58  45.21  2.34  2.36 

Furniture and fixtures  147.64 –  17.74  129.90  146.65  0.29  17.74  129.20  0.70  0.99 
Computers  631.33 –  1.80  629.53  631.31 –  1.79  629.52  0.01  0.02 

Intangible assets
Computer Software  168.78 – –  168.78  168.78 – –  168.78 – –
Total  2,618.84 –  256.08  2,362.76  2,050.90 110.60  174.44  1,987.06  375.70  567.93 
Capital work-in-progress – – – – – – – – – –

Particulars

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation and 
amortisation Net Block

As at 
April 1,

2021

 Addi-
tions 

during 
the year 

 Dis-
posals 
during 

the year

As at 
March 31, 

2022

As at 
April 1,

2021

Charge 
for the 

year

 
Disposals 

during 
the year 

As at 
March 31, 

2022

As at 
March 31, 

2022

As at 
March 31, 

2021

Property, plant and  
equipment
Buildings  69.35 – –  69.35  18.28  3.30 –  21.58  47.76  51.07 

Plant & machinery 1,569.94 –  16.35 1,553.59  926.78 116.09  6.08 1,036.79  516.80  643.16 
Office Euipments  53.47 –  5.32  48.15  31.09  18.01  3.31  45.79  2.36  22.38 

Furniture and fixtures  149.49 –  1.85  147.64  148.17  0.30  1.82  146.65  0.99  1.32 
Computers  631.33 – –  631.33  631.31 – –  631.31  0.02  0.02 

Intangible assets
Computer Software  168.78 – –  168.78  168.78 – –  168.78 – –
Total  2,642.36 –  23.52  2,618.84  1,924.41 137.70  11.21  2,050.90  567.93  717.95 
Capital work-in-progress – – – – – – – – – –
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13.  Deferred tax assets (net)
 (a)  Deferred tax liabilities – –
   (b) Deferred assets
  Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 94.14 36.75
    Provision for employee benefits 42.46 40.43
   Others    0.27 0.27

 Deferred tax assets (net)         136.87  77.45

14.  Long - term loans and advances
  (Unsecured, considered good)             
  (a) Security deposits      96.90   84.11
  (b) Prepaid expenses  2.00   –
  (c) Income tax paid under protest      287.84   164.77 
  (d) Advance income tax [Net of provision for
  income tax INR 578.00 (March 31, 2022:
  INR 1,182.50)]  345.09   261.66

     731.83   510.54

15.  Inventories
 (a)  Raw materials and packing materials      11,101.78   6,121.70
 (b)  Finished goods  4,028.65   3,009.66
  (c)  Stores and spares  91.66   52.15

     15,222.09   9,183.51

16.  Trade receivables
  (a)  Secured, considered good 84.57   86.46
 (b) Unsecured
  – considered good  3,179.07   333.03
  – considered doubtful 1.06 1.06
    Less: Provision for doubtful debts     (1.06) (1.06)
          3,263.64   419.49

    As at  As at
    March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

CWIP
Amount in CWIP for a period of, as on March 31, 2022

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Project in Progress 48.78 – – – 48.78
Projects temporarily suspended – – – – –

Note: There are no projects in capital work-in-progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared 
to its original plan.
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Particulars

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of Payment as 
at March 31, 2023

Not Due
Less 

than 6 
Month

6 month- 
1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More than 
3 years Total

Undisputed Trade Receivable
      Consider Good 3,172.36  91.28 – – – – 3,263.64 
      Consider Doubtful – – – – – – –
Disputed Trade Receivable
      Consider Good – – – – – – –
      Consider Doubtful – – – – – 1.06 1.06
Total 3,172.36  91.28  -    -    -    1.06 3,264.70 

Particulars

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of Payment 
as at March 31, 2022

Not 
Due

Less than 
6 Month

6 month- 
1 year

1-2 
years

2-3 
years

More than 
3 years Total

Undisputed Trade Receivable
      Consider Good 321.50 97.99 – – – – 419.49 
      Consider Doubtful – – – – – – –
Disputed Trade Receivable
      Consider Good – – – – – – –
      Consider Doubtful – – – – – 1.06 1.06
Total  321.50  97.99  -    -    -    1.06  420.55 

MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Trade receivable ageing schedule
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    As at As at
    March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
17.  Cash and Bank Balance
      (a)  Cash on hand     – –
  (b)  Bank balances:
    (i) In current accounts  37.99   4,698.34
    (ii) Demand deposits (less than 3 months maturity)  7,675.00  4,260.00
   Cash and cash equivalent 7,712.99  8,958.34
  (c)  Other bank balances
    (i) Deposits with maturity more than 3 months
   but less than 12 months 3,750.00 8,854.22
    (ii)  Balances held as security against
   bank borrowings* 5,000.00 5,000.00
    (iii)  Unpaid dividend account 6.30 19.50
     8,756.30  13,873.72
     16,469.29   22,832.06
* Held as lien by bank against overdraft facility (Refer note 8)
18.  Short - term loans and advances      
  (Unsecured, considered good)      
         (a)  Advances to vendors 25.50 86.25
  (b)  Prepaid expenses 63.28 43.31
  (c)  Grant receivable from NDDB - MCPP Project 3.82 –
        92.60 129.56 
19.  Other current assets
  (Unsecured, considered good)      
 (a) Interest accrued on deposits with banks 369.70 145.52
 (b) Interest subvention receivable 19.55 19.52

        389.25 165.04

    Year Ended Year Ended
    March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
20.  Revenue from operations
  Sale of products (Refer note (i) below)  1,73,219.22   1,52,435.90
 Other operating revenue (Refer note (ii) below) 247.99 220.12
               1,73,467.21 1,52,656.02

MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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    Year Ended Year Ended
    March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Notes:
(i)  Sales of products comprises:
  (a)  Manufactured goods
     (i)  Polypack milk 57,065.13 49,195.72 
     (ii) Milk products 24,777.45  22,102.08 
     (iii)  Cattle feed 4,803.66 4,356.93
     (iv) Others 142.49 136.97
        86,788.73 75,791.70
 (b)  Traded goods
     (i) Raw milk 86,430.49 76,644.20 
        1,73,219.22 1,52,435.90
(ii) Other operating revenue comprises:
   (a) Sale of scrap       108.33 108.89
     (b) Crate recovery charges      32.28 32.33 
   (c) Others 107.38 78.90 
                247.99 220.12 
21.  Other income
  (a)  Interest income
     (i)  On banks deposits 1,065.30 620.52 
     (ii)  On others 25.98 46.38 
         (b)  Other non-operating income
     (i)  Membership fees 11.24 12.75 
     (ii)  Liabilities no longer required 30.19  35.31
     written back
     (iii)  Profit on sale of property, plant and  – 1.68
     equipment (net)
     (iv) Write back of provision for doubtful debts – 0.27
   (v) Interest subvention 82.07 –
   (vi) Miscellaneous income 20.58 33.68
                1,235.36 750.59
22.  Cost of materials consumed     
 Raw materials and packing materials     
  (a)  Opening inventory 6,121.70 7,480.23 
  (b)  Add: Purchases (net) 81,569.35  61,830.53
          87,691.05 69,310.76
  (c)  Less:  Closing inventory 11,101.78 6,121.70
          76,589.27  63,189.06

MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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  Notes:
  (i)  Raw materials and packing materials
  consumed comprises:
    a.  Raw milk 70,273.46  57,790.77
    b.  Raw materials used for cattle feed 3,821.58  3,155.11
    c.  Packing materials 2,494.23  2,243.18 
          76,589.27  63,189.06
23.  Purchases of stock-in-trade
  (a)  Raw milk 80,900.98 70,361.72
         80,900.98  70,361.72

24.  Changes in inventories of finished goods      
  (Increase)/decrease in stocks      
       (a)  Stock at the end of the year: Finished goods 4,028.65 3,009.66
  (b)  Less: Stock at the beginning of the year:
  Finished goods 3,009.66 6,326.90

   (Increase)/decrease in stock  (1,018.99)  3,317.24

25.  Employee benefits expense
 (a)  Salaries, wages and bonus 2,163.06 1,854.35 
  (b)  Gratuity (Refer note 33) 48.31 49.46
  (c)  Contribution to provident fund (Refer note 33)  137.39  125.65
 (d) Staff welfare expenses 92.17 61.41

    2,440.93 2,090.87 
26.  Finance costs
 (a)  Interest expense
    (i)  On borrowings  121.35 144.65 
    (ii)  On trade/security deposits received – 4.91
 (b)  Interest on delayed payments
  to micro enterprises and small enterprises 3.31 –

  (c) Other borrowing costs 1.79 2.77 

         126.45 152.33 

27. Depreciation and amortisation expense
       (a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
  (Refer note 12) 531.38 584.44
   Less: Depreciation pertaining to assets acquired
  out of capital grant (Refer note 12(a)) 110.60 137.70
       420.78   446.74

    Year Ended Year Ended
    March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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28.  Other expenses
 (a)  Consumption of stores and spare parts 694.10 450.80
  (b)  Power and fuel    386.52  309.50
  (c)  Processing charges    5,009.28 4,081.99
  (d)  Rent (Refer note 35) 338.68 338.43
  (e)  Repair and maintenance - machinery 146.37 282.01
  (f)  Repair and maintenance - buildings 74.96 94.97
  (g)  Repair and maintenance - others 12.63 25.91
  (h)  Insurance 9.13 11.87
  (i) Rates and taxes    5.53 7.45
  (j) Water charges 2.83   2.22
  (k) Advertisement and business promotion 345.91 174.76
  (l)  Distribution, freight and forwarding expenses 3,165.65 2,866.65
  (m)  Legal and professional fees 352.59 349.97
  (n)  Payment to Auditors (Refer note (i) below) 31.51  22.53
  (o)  Travelling and conveyance 280.55  186.83
  (p)  Sales discount and other charges 228.19  206.50
  (q)  Printing and stationery expenses 52.23  36.49
  (r)  Telephone and internet expenses 141.94  124.50
  (s)  Labour charges 1,444.10  1,206.10
 (t) Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility
  (CSR) activities (Refer note (ii) below) 30.71 31.73
 (u) Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 157.56 –
  (v) Miscellaneous expenses 260.49 169.25
         13,171.46 10,980.46
 Note:
  (i)  Auditors’ remuneration:
    (a) Statutory audit fee  25.00 16.10
    (b) Tax audit fee 2.00 2.50
  (c) Out-of-pocket expenses 1.65 1.24
    (d)Goods and services tax (GST) on above 2.86 2.69
         31.51 22.53

    Year Ended Year Ended
    March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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 Note: (ii) Details of Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure:

    (1) Amount required to be spent by the company
   during the year 30.71 31.73

  (2) Excess amount spent carried forward  11.99 –

  (3) Amount spent during the year on:
   (i) Construction/acquisition of any asset – –
   (ii) On purpose other than (i) above 20.14 43.72

         Total 20.14 43.72

  (4) Excess amount spent during the financial year 1.42 11.99

  (5) Set-off available for succeeding financial years 1.42 11.99

  (6) Nature of CSR activities
   (a) Contribution to PM National Relief Fund
   (b) Project Atmasamman:

The project aims to provide the education and employment enhancing vocation 
skills and for livelihood enhancement projects.

   (c) Project Swasthya Sathe Vidhya:

The project aims to eradicate hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting health 
care including preventive health care and sanitation.

29.  Earnings per share
 (a)  Basic
  i) Profit after tax 1,553.11 2,142.29
  ii) Weighted average number of
   Equity shares outstanding 37,24,239 33,33,842
  iii) Basic Earnings per Equity share (INR) 41.70 64.26
   Nominal value of Equity share (INR) 100.00 100.00

Note: There is no dilution to the Basic Earnings per Equity share as there are no dilutive  
  potential Equity shares.

    Year Ended Year Ended
    March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

    As at As at
    March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
30. Contingent liabilities 
 a) Claims against the Company not
     acknowledged as debts 
      Income Tax matters 284.24 284.24

MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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31. In respect of the year ended March 31, 2023, the Board of Directors in their meeting held 
on July 28, 2023 have proposed a final dividend of INR 332.75 Lakhs (INR 8 per share) to 
be paid on fully paid Equity shares.

32. Related party disclosures 
   A.  Name of the related parties and nature of relationship  

    Nature of Relationship Name of related party 

  Key Management Personnel Dr. Sanjaykumar M Govani
    Chief Executive and Director

 B.  Nature and amount of related party transactions

 Nature of transactions For the year ended For the year ended 
  March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
   Managerial remuneration 
 Dr. Sanjaykumar M Govani  57.66  47.71
   57.66   47.71
33. Employee benefit plans

 a)  Defined-contribution plans

  Amount recognised in the Statement
  of Profit and Loss

  i) Provident fund paid to the authorities 137.39 125.65
   137.39  125.65
 b)  Defined benefit plan 

Gratuity
The Company operates a Gratuity Plan. Every employee is entitled to a benefit 
equivalent to fifteen days salary last drawn for each completed year of service in line 
with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The same is payable at the time of separation 
from the Company or retirement, whichever is earlier. The benefits vest after five years 
of continuous service.

  i) Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss  
   Current service cost 56.60 54.28 
   Interest cost 24.87 20.81
   Past service costs – –
   Expected return on plan assets (25.90) (21.09)
   Actuarial (gain)/loss (7.26) (4.54)
  Total expense  48.31  49.46

MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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 ii. Present value of defined benefit obligation
  Balance at the beginning of the year 381.55 334.69
  Current service cost    56.60 54.28
  Interest cost 24.87 20.81
   Past service cost    – –
  Benefit Paid    (29.85) (21.34)
  Actuarial (gain)/loss (11.17) (6.89)
  Balance at the end  of  the year    422.00  381.55

 iii. Fair value of plan assets
  Balance at the beginning of the year 368.10 311.75
   Expected return on plan assets 25.90 21.09
  Contribution by the Company 36.56 50.62
  Benefit Paid (25.83)  (13.01)
  Actuarial gains/(loss) (3.90)  (2.35)
  Balance at the end of the year   400.83 368.10
  Actual return on plan assets   22.00 18.74

  iv.  Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet 
   Present value of defined benefit obligations 422.00 381.55
   Less: Fair value of plan assets   400.83 368.10
  Amount recognised as liability  21.17 13.45

  Recognised under:
   Long-term provisions (Refer note 7)  21.17 13.45

 v. Major Category of plan assets as a % of total plan assets
   Funds managed by Insurer 100% 100%
  Note: The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the composition of plan assets  
            held (through LIC).

 vi. Actuarial assumptions For the year ended For the year ended 
   March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
 Discount rate 7.40% 6.90%
 Salary growth rate 10.00% 10.00%
 Attrition rate 10.00% 10.00%

Notes:
1) The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes into 

account, inflation, seniority, promotions and other relevant factors, such as demand and 
supply in the employment market.

    As at As at
    March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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2) The discount rate used is the market yields on Government Bonds at the Balance Sheet date 
with remaining terms to maturity approximating those of the Company’s obligations.

 vii. Amounts recognised in current year and previous four years
 Particulars  March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
   2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
 Defined benefit obligation 422.00 381.55 334.69 286.38 206.38

 Plan assets  400.82 368.10   311.75   264.26   205.55

 Deficit  21.17 13.45 22.94  22.12 0.83

 Experience adjustments

 in plan liabilities-Loss/(Gain) (7.26) (4.54) 4.07 38.18 0.83

 Experience adjustments in

 plan assets-Gain/(Loss) (3.90) (2.35)  (2.75)  4.11  (4.20)

 viii.  Expected contribution to the fund in the next year As at As at
    March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

  Gratuity  60.38 56.60

34. Additional regulatory information required by Schedule III
 (a)  Analytical ratios

Ratio  March 31, 
2023 

 March 31, 
2022

Variance 
(%) Reason for variance

Current Ratio 1  1.97  1.84 6.87% Not applicable

Debt-Equity Ratio 2  0.41  0.57 -27.90% The change in ratio is due 
to repayment of borrowings 
during the current year.

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 3  20.71  22.76 -9.01% Not applicable

Return on Equity Ratio 4  0.10  0.16 -37.24% The change in the ratio is due to 
decrease in net profit after tax 
and increase in shareholders 
equity in comparison to 
previous year.

Inventory turnover Ratio 5  14.22  13.25 7.25% Not applicable

Trade Receivables turnover 
Ratio

6  94.20  392.26 -75.99% The change in ratio is due to 
increase in the balance of trade 
receivables as at March 31, 2023 
in comparison to previous year.

Trade Payables turnover 
Ratio

7  18.77  18.12 3.61% Not applicable

MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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Ratio  March 31, 
2023 

 March 31, 
2022

Variance 
(%) Reason for variance

Net Capital turnover Ratio 8  10.71  11.39 -5.99% Not applicable

Net profit Ratio 9  0.01  0.01 -36.20% The change in ratio is due to 
decrease in net profit during 
the current year in comparison 
to previous year.

Return on Capital 
Employed

10  0.09  0.13 -28.65% The change in ratio is due to 
decrease in earnings before 
interest and tax during the 
current year in comparison to 
previous year.

Return on investment 11  -    -   - Not applicable

 Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022
 1. Current Ratio
  Current Assets Numerator  35,436.87   32,729.66
  Current Liabilities Denominator  18,002.90   17,770.58

 2. Debt-Equity Ratio
  Total Debt Numerator  6,953.17   8,477.93
  Shareholders’ Equity Denominator 16,956.08  14,906.72

 3. Debts Service Coverage Ratio
  Earning available for debt service Numerator  2,618.92   3,467.26
  Debt service Denominator  126.45   152.33

 4. Return on Equity Ratio
  Net profit after tax Numerator  1,553.11   2,142.29
  Average Shareholders’ Equity Denominator  15,931.40   13,791.87

 5. Inventory turnover Ratio
  Sales  Numerator  1,73,467.21   1,52,656.02
  Average Inventory Denominator  12,202.80   11,517.87

 6. Trade Receivables turnover Ratio
  Net Credit Sales Numerator  1,73,467.21   1,52,656.02
  Average Accounts Receivables Denominator  1,841.57   389.17

 7. Trade Payables turnover Ratio
  Total Purchases Numerator  1,70,661.71   1,44,531.24
  Average Trade Payables Denominator  9,093.01   7,978.39

 8. Net Capital turnover Ratio
  Net Sales Numerator  1,73,467.21   1,52,656.02
  Average Working Capital Denominator  16,196.53   13,400.26

MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
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 Particulars  March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022
 9. Net profit Ratio
  Net profit Numerator  1,553.11   2,142.29
  Net Sales Denominator  1,73,467.21   1,52,656.02
 10. Return on Capital Employed
  Earnings before interest and tax Numerator  2,198.14   3,020.52 
  Capital Employed Denominator  23,772.38   23,307.20
 11. Return on investment
  No investments made by the Company.  — —
  Hence, this ratio is not applicable.
 (b) Other regulatory information
  (i) Details of benami property held
   No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company for 

holding benami property under the Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as 
amended in 2016) and Rules made thereunder.

  (ii) Borrowings secured against current assets
   The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets. 

The Company has filed quarterly returns or statements with such banks, where 
applicable, which are in agreement with the unaudited books of account.

  (iii) Wilful defaulter
   The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 

institution or government or any government authority.
  (iv) Relationship with struck off companies
   The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies 

Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.
  (v) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
   There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar 

of Companies beyond the statutory period.
  (vi) Compliance with number of layers of companies
   The Company has not invested in any subsidiary companies, therefore, this is not 

applicable to the Company.
  (vii) Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements
   The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement.
  (viii) Utilisation of borrowed funds and securities premium
   The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) 

or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding 
that the Intermediary shall:

   — directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) 
or
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   — provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries.

   The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 

   — directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries) or 

   — provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries.

  (ix) Undisclosed income
   There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or 

previous year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not 
been recorded in the books of account.

  (x) Loans or advances to specified persons
   The Company has not granted any loans or advances to the promoters, directors, 

KMPs and related parties during the year.

  (xi) Details of crypto currency or virtual currency
   The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency 

during the current or previous year.

  (xii) Valuation of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment 
property

   The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible 
assets or both during the current or previous year.

  (xiii) Utilisation of borrowings availed from banks and financial institutions
   The borrowings obtained by the Company from banks and financial institutions 

have been applied for the purposes for which such loans were taken.

  (xiv) Title deeds of immovable properties not held in the name of the Company
   The Company does not own any immovable properties, therefore, this is not 

applicable to the Company.

35. Leases
 The Company has operating lease arrangements for premises. These lease 

arrangements range for a period between 12 months and 35 years, which are 
cancellable leases. Most of the leases are renewable for further period on mutually 
agreeable terms and also include escalation clauses. Lease payments recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year is INR 338.68 (March 31, 2022: 
INR 338.43).

MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
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36. Segment reporting

 The Company has identified the business segment as its primary segment. In 
accordance with Accounting Standard 17 - “Segment Reporting”, the Company has 
determined its business segment as supply of “Milk and Milk products”. Since the 
Company’s entire business is from supply of Milk and Milk products, there are no 
other primary reportable segments. Thus, the segment revenue, segment results, 
total carrying value of segment assets, total carrying value of segment liabilities, 
total cost incurred to acquire segment assets, total amount of charge of depreciation 
and amortisation during the year are all as reflected in the financial statements as 
at and for the year ended March 31, 2023. Further, since the entire revenue of the 
Company is generated from India, geographical secondary segment disclosures are 
also not applicable.

37. Impact of Code on Social Security, 2020

 The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during 
employement and post-employement, received Presidential assent on September 
28, 2020 and has been published in Gazette of India. However, the date on which 
the provisions of the Code will come into effect has not been notified. The Company 
will assess the impact of the Code and the related Schemes/Rules when it comes 
into effects. Pending notification of the effective date as on the date, no impact of 
the same has been recorded in these financial statement.

38. Previous year figures 

 Previous year figures have been reclassified, wherever necessary, to conform to the 
current year’s classification.

MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
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MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED
Minutes of the Previous Annual General Meeting 

MINUTES OF THE 11th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) OF THE 
MEMBERS OF MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED HELD ON 
FRIDAY, THE 2nd DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2022, AT 11:00 A.M., AT SAYAJI 
HOTEL, VRUNDAVAN SOCIETY MAIN ROAD, NEAR PRADHYUMAN 
GREENCITY TOWER, KALAWAD ROAD, RAJKOT - GUJARAT 360005.
Present: 
 Board of Directors   
 Shri Mahendrasinh Jadeja :  Chairman & Shareholder
 Shri Rambhai Ram    :  Director & Shareholder
 Shri Lalabhai Algotar :  Director & Shareholder
 Shri Vishvasbhai Dodiya :  Director & Shareholder
 Smt Shobhanaben Patoriya :  Director & Shareholder
 Shri Nagabhai Odedara :  Director & Shareholder
 Shri Goganbhai Kandoriya :  Director & Shareholder
 Smt Sushilaben Pandya :  Director & Shareholder
 Shri Vijaybhai Odedara :  Director & Shareholder
 Shri Sriram Singh :  Expert Director
 Dr. Sanjaykumar Govani :  Chief Executive & Director

 Company Secretary  Representative of Statutory Auditors
 Shri Sanjay Talati   S. B. Billimoria & Co. LLP :
      Shri Shiv Goel

Chairman:

Shri Mahendrasinh Jadeja, Chairman 
of the meeting extended a warm 
welcome to the members of the 
company and Board of Directors 
at the 11th AGM of the Company. 
He informed members that due to 
personal and unavoidable reasons 
Shri Mathurbhai Raiyani, Director of 
the Company and Dr. C P Devanand, 
Expert Directors of the Company 
could not attend the meeting.

Confirmation of Quorum:

Chairman then asked to the Company 
Secretary to confirm the attendance 
of members. Company Secretary has 
informed that as per the provisions of 
Sec. 378Y of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Article 11.6 of the Articles of 
Association of the Company, presence 
of one fourth of the total members of 
the Company i.e. 24,927 (in person and 
through proxy) shall be the quorum for 
the Meeting.
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As per the attendance Register, the following members were present:

 Members  
 In Person : 336 members holding 33,869 shares

 Through Proxy : 155 Proxies representing 34,004 members holding 
18,36,391 shares.

In total, 34,340 members i.e. 34.44% 
of the total members in person and by 
proxies were present. 
As the requisite quorum was present, 
Company Secretary requested the 
Chairman to grant the permission 
to commence the proceeding of the 
meeting.
Then ,  C hai r man has  g rante d 
p er miss ion  to  commence  t he 
proceeding of the meeting.
Avai l abi l i ty  of  Reg isters  for 
Inspection:
Company Secretary Shri Sanjay Talati 
informed the Members that Statutory 
Registers viz., Register of Members 
and other Statutory Registers were 
available to the Members for inspection 
throughout the meeting.
Address of Chairman:
Chairman has given a glimpse of 
the business activities carried by 
the company during the year and 
informed that Company has achieved 
a sales turnover of Rs. 1526.56 Crores. 
Further, company has booked profit 
before tax of Rs. 28.68 Crores during 
the year 2021-22. He further informed 
members that even during the difficult 
time of “Tauktae” cyclone and second 
wave of Covid-19 members have kept 
their unbroken faith in the company 
for which he is really grateful to all 
members. He apprised members that 
company has relaxed the criteria for 

payment of incentives to affected 
members due to the “Tauktae” cyclone, 
considering the number of days milk 
procurement was affected. Even during 
the adversity, company has paid 
average Milk Price of Rs. 46.20 per litre, 
including the payment of incentive 
of Rs. 30.11 Crore, based on the 
fulfillment of criteria.  He appreciated 
all the members for positive response 
to his appeal for use of Maahi Dan 
for their animal which resulted into 
increase in sale of Maahi Dan by 134% 
as compared to the last year.
Lastly, he thanked to Expert Directors, 
Producer Directors, Members, Mother 
Dairy Fruits and Vegetables Pvt. 
Ltd., Customers, Bankers, Service 
Providers, Employees, NDDB, NDDB 
Dairy Services and all those directly 
and indirectly associated with the 
Company for their contribution.
Address of Chief Executive:
Thereafter, Dr. Sanjaykumar Govani, 
the Chief Executive of the Company 
welcomed and addressed the members. 
He highlighted about the company’s 
efforts in making their members 
and stake holders Atmaneerbhar 
and also various steps company has 
taken in the field of Digitalization like 
Automatic Milk Collection System 
(AMCS), Maahi Members App, ERP 
software, Milk on Mobile etc. He 
informed members that all the digital 
initiatives of the Company have been 
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developed and maintained in-house 
by IT department with the help of 
FES & Milk procurement department. 
He informed members about the 
concept of Maahi Mall which is unique 
initiative of the company to promote 
and increase sales of its products as 
well as to generate employment at 
rural level. He also informed members 
about the launching of new products 
by the Company like Buffalo Ghee of 
Jamkhambadiya region, Shrikhand 
made with natural ingredients and 
“Naye India Ka Naya Dessert” Misti 
Doi. All these products have received 
good response from the customers. 
Further, he enlightened members 
about the planning to launch “Maahi 
Pashu Seva”, veterinary services at 
doorsteps of farmers. He also requested 
all the members to support ear tagging 
for their animals and encourage 
other members also. He informed 
the members that tagging will help to 
maintain the records of animals like 
animal breeds, past diseased cured and 
in future it may also help to trade the 
animals easily as members will have all 
the records of their animals.   
Further,  he extended his deep 
condolences to the family members 
who have lost their dear ones during 
the year. 
Lastly, he expressed his sincere thanks 
and gratitude to Members, Board 
of Directors, NDDB, NDDB Dairy 
Services, Mother Dairy Fruits and 
Vegetables Pvt. Ltd, Employees and 
all the stakeholders for their supports.
Notice and Auditors’ Report:
Company Secretary declared that 
the Notice convening 11th AGM, 
alongwith Directors’ Report, Audited 

Financial Statements for the year ended 
31st March, 2022 have already been 
circulated to the Members, is taken 
as read with the unanimous consent 
of the present members.  Further, 
Company Secretary has informed that 
the Auditors’ Report of the Company 
for the year ended 31st March, 2022, do 
not contain any qualification/ adverse 
remarks, therefore it is also taken as 
read. 
Thereafter, on the advice of the 
Chairman, Company Secretary, took 
up the items of Agenda of the meeting 
as set out in the Notice of 11th AGM of 
the Company.
1. Adoption of financial statements.
1.1 Shri Mahendrasinh Jadeja (Folio 

no.: 0022882) Chairman of the 
Company belonging to Class – A 
proposed the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution.

 R e s o l u t i o n  N o . :  1 1 t h 
AGM:02.09.2022:1/2022-23

 “RESOLVED THAT, the audited 
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 
2022, the Profit and Loss Account 
and Cash Flow Statement for the 
year ended on that date together 
with Schedules and notes forming 
part thereof and the Reports of 
Directors and Auditors thereon be 
and are hereby received, approved 
and adopted.”

 Shri Pankaj Pratapbhai Parmar 
(Folio no. 0143514) belonging to 
Class- A seconded the resolution.

 The Chairman put the motion 
to vote and on a show of hands 
declared the same as approved 
unanimously.
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2. Declaration of Dividend.
2.1 Shri Rambhai Ram (Folio No: 

0006605) belonging to Class – B 
proposed the following resolution 
as an Ordinary Resolution.

 R e s o l u t i o n  N o . :  1 1 t h 
AGM:02.09.2022:2/2022-23

 “RESOLVED THAT, the limited 
return (dividend) on share capital 
of the Company at the rate of Rs. 
8/- per equity share, out of the 
current profits of the Company for 
the year ended 31st March 2022, on 
36,81,635 equity shares of Rs.100 
each fully paid up absorbing Rs. 
2,94,53,080/- for the FY 2021-22, 
be and is hereby approved and 
confirmed, and that the same be 
paid to those equity shareholders, 
whose names appeared on the 
Register of Members as on 31st 
March 2022.” 

 Shri Jagdishbhai Babubhai Bhaliya 
(Folio no. 0177419) belonging to 
Class – B seconded the resolution.

 The Chairman put the motion 
to vote and on a show of hands 
declared the same as approved 
unanimously.

3. Appointment of Shri Goganbhai 
Arashibhai Kandoriya as a 
Director.

3.1 Shri. Rajdeep Lakhujibhai Gohil 
(Folio No: 0212978) belonging to 
Class – B proposed the following 
resolut ion as  an  Ordinar y 
Resolution.

 R e s o l u t i o n  N o . :  1 1 t h 
AGM:02.09.2022:3/2022-23

 “ R E S O LV E D  T HAT,  S h r i 
Goganbhai Arashibhai Kandoriya 
(DIN: 08517743), representing 
“Class-B” on the  B oard of 

Directors, retires by rotation at 
the 11th Annual General Meeting 
of the Company in terms of Article 
9.6(iii) of Articles of Association 
of the Company and being eligible 
offers himself for re-appointment 
and based on the recommendation 
of the Nominating committee 
and that of the Board, and in 
terms of Article 9.6 and other 
relevant articles of the Articles of 
Association of the Company and 
other applicable provisions, if any, 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
rules framed thereunder (together 
with any statutory modification or 
re-enactment thereof for the time 
being in force), be and is hereby 
re-appointed as Director whose 
period of office shall be liable to 
retire by rotation.” 

 Shri Abdulajij Abdulla Sandhar 
(Folio no. 0181758) belonging to 
Class – B seconded the resolution.

 The Chairman informed that only 
members belonging to Class “B” 
would be entitled to vote on the 
resolution.

 The Chairman put the motion 
to vote and on a show of hands 
declared the same as approved 
unanimously.

4. Appointment of Price Waterhouse 
Chartered Accountants LLP as 
Statutory Auditors.

4.1  Shri Arvind Sajangar Aparnathi 
(Folio No: 0116690) belonging to 
Class – B proposed the following 
resolut ion as  an  Ordinar y 
Resolution.

 R e s o l u t i o n  N o . :  1 1 t h 
AGM:02.09.2022:4/2022-23

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant 
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to the provisions of Sections 139 
and 142 of the Companies Act, 
2013, and rules made thereunder, 
M/s Price Waterhouse Chartered 
Accountants LLP, (FRN 012754N/
N500016), be and are hereby 
appointed as the Statutory Auditors 
of the Company, to hold office from 
the conclusion of the 11th Annual 
General Meeting till the conclusion 
of the 12th Annual General Meeting 
of the Company, at a remuneration 
of Rs. 25,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty 
Five Lakhs Only) plus applicable 
GST tax and reimbursement 
of travelling and out of pocket 
expenses incurred by the Auditors 
for the purpose of conducting the 
audit for the financial year 2022-
23.”

 Shri Paras Vejanandbhai Solanki 
(Folio no. 0220198) belonging to 
Class – C seconded the resolution.

 The Chairman put the motion 
to vote and on a show of hands 
declared the same as approved 
unanimously.

5. To Consider and approve the 
Budget of the Company for the 
FY 2022-23.

5.1 Shri Haribhai Gagjibhai Shiyaliya 
(Folio No: 0159370) belonging to 
Class – A proposed the following 
resolut ion as  an  Ordinar y 
Resolution.

 R e s o l u t i o n  N o . :  1 1 t h 
AGM:02.09.2022:5/2022-23

 “RESOLVED THAT, the Budget 
of the Company for the financial 
year 2022-23, as placed before 
the meeting, be and is hereby 
approved.”

 Shri Bhupatbhai Anandbhai 

Gamara (Folio no. 0141541) 
belonging to Class – A seconded 
the resolution.

 The Chairman put the motion 
to vote and on a show of hands 
declared the same as approved 
unanimously.

6. A p p o i n t m e n t  o f  S h r i 
Sharadkumar Mohanlal Mota as 
a Director

6.1 Shri Haribhai Kamabhai Jograna 
(Folio No: 0145324) belonging to 
Class – A proposed the following 
resolut ion as  an  Ordinar y 
Resolution.

 R e s o l u t i o n  N o . :  1 1 t h 
AGM:02.09.2022:6/2022-23

 “RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to 
the provisions of Section 378P of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and any 
other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Articles 
of Association of the Company, 
Shri Rambhai Ukabhai Ram (DIN: 
07235592), representing class – B, 
who shall complete his second term 
of appointment and, not eligible 
for re-appointment as per the 
provisions of Article 9.6.iii, shall 
retire at the 11th Annual General 
meeting of the Company, and to 
ensure the Class representation of 
members on the Board based on 
the Patronage criteria (vide Article 
9.5 read with 9.6 i) and based 
on the recommendation of the 
Nominating committee and that 
of the Board,  in his place election/
appointment of Shri Sharadkumar 
Mohanlal Mota (DIN: 09680368) 
representing class “A” members, 
be and is hereby appointed as a 
Director of the Company, whose 
period of office shall be liable to 
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retire by rotation.”
 Shri Ranjitbhai Rambhai Barad 

(Folio no. 0011004) belonging to 
Class – A seconded the resolution. 

 The Chairman informed that only 
members belonging to Class “A” 
would be entitled to vote on the 
resolution.

 The Chairman put the motion 
to vote and on a show of hands 
declared the same as approved 
unanimously.

7. Appointment of Shri Rambhai 
Bavkubhai Budhas as a Director.

7.1 Shri Arvindbhai Mansukhbhai 
Bhojani (Folio No: 0141946) 
belonging to Class – A proposed 
the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution.

 R e s o l u t i o n  N o . :  1 1 t h 

AGM:02.09.2022:7/2022-23
 “RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to 

the provisions of Section 378P of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and any 
other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Articles 
of Association of the Company, Shri 
Lalabhai Vamabhai Algotar (DIN: 
07566162), representing class – B, 
who shall complete his second term 
of appointment and, not eligible 
for re-appointment as per the 
provisions of Article 9.6.iii, shall 
retire at the 11th Annual General 
meeting of the Company, and to 
ensure the Class representation 
of members on the Board based 
on the Patronage criteria (vide 
Article 9.5 read with 9.6 i) and 
based on the recommendation of 
the Nominating committee and 
that of the Board, in his place 
Shri Rambhai Bavkubhai Budhas  
(DIN: 09680410)  representing 

class A members, be and is hereby 
appointed as a Director of the 
Company, whose period of office 
shall be liable to retire by rotation.”

 Shri Baubhai Virabhai Kunya 
(Folio no. 0152339) belonging to 
Class – A seconded the resolution. 

 The Chairman informed that only 
members belonging to Class “A” 
would be entitled to vote on the 
resolution. 

 The Chairman put the motion 
to vote and on a show of hands 
declared the same as approved 
unanimously.

8. Appointment of Smt. Nilamben 
Makabhai Golitar as a Director.

8.1 Smt Dayaben Bhaveshbhai Gajera 
(Folio No: 0160494) belonging to 
Class – C proposed the following 
resolut ion as  an  Ordinar y 
Resolution.

 R e s o l u t i o n  N o . :  1 1 t h 
AGM:02.09.2022:8/2022-23

 “RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to 
the provisions of Section 378 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and any 
other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Articles 
of Association of the Company, and 
to ensure the Class representation 
of members on the Board based 
on the Patronage criteria (vide 
Article 9.5 read with 9.6 i), and 
based on the recommendation of 
the Nominating committee and 
that of the Board, Smt. Nilamben 
Makabhai Golitar (DIN: 09676104) 
representing “Class-C” members, 
be and is hereby appointed as a 
Director of the Company, whose 
period of office shall be liable to 
retire by rotation.

 Shri Bharatbhai Balubhai Kathi 
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(Folio no. 0194425) belonging to 
Class – C seconded the resolution. 

 The Chairman informed that only 
members belonging to Class “C” 
would be entitled to vote on the 
resolution. 

 The Chairman put the motion 
to vote and on a show of hands 
declared the same as approved 
unanimously.

9. Alteration in Objects Clause of 
Memoranduam of Association 
of the Company

9.1 Chairman of the Company Shri 
Mahendrasinh Jadeja has briefed 
about the object and need for 
Alteration of the Memorandum 
of Association. He informed 
members that considering the 
objects of the Company to promote 
the principles of mutuality and 
techniques of mutual assistance 
amongst the Members and further, 
to be true to the Mission, the 
Company would like to undertake 
activities for the members of 
the Company and others in our 
area of operations by providing 
certain daily need items like edible 
oils, fruits, vegetables, primary 
produces at a competitive price by 
sourcing the same in bulk or on 
retail basis. In order to pursue such 
activities in the future, it is being 
proposed to add new objective 
under its main objects clause.

 Further, the reference of section 
of part IX-A of the Companies 
Act, 1956 has been proposed to 
be omitted and replaced with 
the respective section of Chapter 
XXIA of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 He then proposed the following 
resolution as a Special Resolution.

 R e s o l u t i o n  n o . :  1 1 t h 
AGM:02.09.2022:9/2022-23

 “RESOLVED THAT, pursuant 
to the provisions of section 
378H of Chapter XXI-A of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (together 
with any statutory modification 
or re-enactment thereof for the 
time being in force), the applicable 
provisions of the Memorandum 
and Articles of Association of the 
Company, the existing Clause III 
A  of Memorandum of Association 
of the Company be and is hereby 
altered by adding following new 
object as point 5 and renumbering 
the existing point 5 as new point 6. 

 5. To carry on the business of 
purchasing, producing, processing, 
selling, trading, import, export 
etc. of primary produce and its 
derivatives including but not 
limited to edible oil, fruits and 
vegetables primari ly of  the 
members and also of others, 
marketing of the same and to deal 
in activities that are part of or 
incidental to any activity related 
thereto.

 FURTHER RESOLVED THAT 
in point 15 of Clause III B of 
Memorandum of Association of 
the Company the reference of 
section ‘581ZH’ and in Clause 
18 reference of section ‘581ZL of 
Companies Act, 1956 be and is 
hereby omitted and replaced with 
section ‘378ZH’ and section ‘378ZL 
respectively of the Companies Act, 
2013.”

 Shr i  Chandresh  Jo dhabhai 
Pandheriya (Folio no. 0161504) 
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belonging to Class – A seconded 
the resolution. 

 The Chairman put the motion 
to vote and on a show of hands 
declared the same as approved 
unanimously.

10. A l te r at i on  i n  Ar t i c l e s  of 
Association of the Company

10.1 Chairman of the Company 
Shri Mahendrasinh Jadeja has 
briefed about the object and need 
for Alteration of the Article of 
Association.

 Alteration of Article 4.3 (ii)
Article 4.3 deals with the conditions 
for continuation and cancellation 
of membership. In order to clarify 
the mode through which notice 
may be sent to the members and 
also to give the Board an option 
to decide to exempt one or more 
eligibility criteria for all members 
for particular year while serving 
notice it is proposed to make an 
alteration in Article 4.3 (ii) of 
Articles of Association. 
Alteration of Article 9.13
Article 9.13 of the Articles of 
Association of the Company 
deals with the quorum for Board 
Meeting. However, it does not 
speak about adjournment of 
meeting for want of quorum. Sec. 
174(4) of the Companies Act, 
2013 deals with the Quorum for 
a meeting of Board. It provides 
that where a meeting of the Board 
could not be held for want of 
quorum, then, unless the articles 
of the company otherwise provide, 
the meeting shall automatically 
stand adjourned to the same 
day at the same time and place 
in the next week or if that day is 

a national holiday, till the next 
succeeding day, which is not a 
national holiday, at the same time 
and place.
Thus, in order to hold an adjourned 
Board Meeting within a week from 
the day of the original meeting, it 
is proposed to amend the existing 
Article 9.13.
He then proposed the following 
resolution as a Special Resolution.
R e s o l u t i o n  n o . :  1 1 t h 
AGM:02.09.2022:10/2022-23
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to 
Sec. 378-I and other applicable 
provisions of Companies Act, 
2013 including the provisions of 
Chapter XXI-A of the Act and 
rules made thereunder, Articles 
of the Company be and is hereby 
altered in the manner and to the 
extent as follows:
Existing Article 4.3 (ii) be replaced 
with the following Article as under: 
4.3 (ii) Any member who is not 
eligible to continue as a Member 
shall be served a written notice 
by the Company for removal as 
Member and given an opportunity 
of being heard. However, for the 
purpose of sending notices to the 
members, the Board may exempt 
one or more eligibility criterion for 
all the members during a particular 
year. The Member would need to 
reply to the notice within the 
stipulated period as specified in the 
notice. Such notice shall be send 
by/through:
- Registered Post to the Member 
at his last known address and be 
deemed to be served five days after 
posting; or
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-   Electronic mode to the Member 
at his email ID registered with the 
Company and be deemed to be 
served on the day of sending email 
to Member.
Thereafter, the Board shall take a 
decision in the matter.
Existing Article 9.13 be replaced 
with the following Article as under: 
9.13 i. The quorum for a meeting 
of the Board shall be one-third 
of the total strength of directors, 
subject to a minimum of three 
including the presence of at least 
one elected Director and one 
Expert Director. Notwithstanding 
the above, the quorum for the 
meeting of the Board of Directors 
shall not require the presence of 
the Expert Director in case there 
is no Expert Director on the Board 
of the Company.
ii. In case meeting of the Board 
could not be held for want of 
quorum, the meet ing shal l 
stands adjourned for the date, 
time and place as decided by 
the Chairman of the Company. 
However, the adjourned meeting 
shall be convened by the Chairman 
within seven days from the date of 
original meeting.”
Shri Naran Kara Chocha (Folio no. 
0142903) belonging to Class – A 
seconded the resolution. 
The Chairman put the motion 
to vote and on a show of hands 
declared the same as approved 
unanimously.

11. To Consider and recommend 
the partial modification of 
Ordinary Resolution No. 3rd 

AG M : 2 6 . 0 8 . 1 4 : 1 1 / 2 0 1 4 - 1 5 
adopted at the 3rd Annual General 
Meeting of the Company.

11.1 Company secretar y of  the 
company has informed the 
members that members have 
adopted a table  containing 
Parameters  for  appl icant’s 
eligibility score at the 3rd Annual 
General Meeting. This table 
provides for the marks that a 
candidate is entitled on the basis of 
different parameters like number 
of days’ milk poured, educational 
qualification, training programme 
attended, awards or recognition 
as a member of the company 
etc. Inadvertently, the parameter 
regarding the Training Programme 
does not contain the programme 
LDP (Leadership Development 
P r o g r a m m e ) .  L e a d e r s h i p 
Development Programme is a 
good training for members with 
an objective to develop skill of 
self-evaluation, creating awareness 
about teamwork, inculcating 
the Leadership skill, creating 
awareness among the members 
about the value, vision and mission 
of the company etc. In order that 
the members who apply for the 
position of a director and have 
attended the LDP, get the marks 
for it, the resolution is proposed 
before the members.

 Shri  Gumansinh Khetasinh 
Rathod (Folio No: 0197490) 
belonging to Class – A proposed 
the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution.

 R e s o l u t i o n  n o . :  1 1 t h 
AGM:02.09.2022:11/2022-23
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to 
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the relevant provisions of Chapter 
XXI-A of the Companies Act,2013 
and the applicable provisions of 
the Memorandum and Articles 
of Association of the Company, 
the Ordinary Resolution no. 
3 rd AGM:26.08.14:11/2014-
15 adopted at the 3rd Annual 
General Meeting of the Company 
be modified by insertion LDP 
( L e a d e r s h ip  D e v e l opm e nt 
Programme) (5 Marks) alongwith 

other Training Programmes 
attended viz., Producer/women 
awareness (5 Marks); orientation 
programme for VCG (5 Marks)/
MRG (5 Marks)/ For Board of 
Directors’ Training Programme of 
MAAHI (MMPCL) attended (15 
Marks) in Parameter for applicant’s 
Eligibility Score Statement and the 
revised table of parameter for 
applicant’s eligibility score is as 
under:

Parameter for applicant’s eligibility score Maximum 
Score

Number of days of milk supplied to the company during 
previous two financial years scoring will be as follows: (95% or 
more days – 25; 85% to <95% days – 20; 75% to <85% - 15; 65% 
to <75% - 10; 55% to <65% - 5; <55% - 0)  

25

Share capital subscription is not falling short by more than 
10% of the actual requirement as on 31st march of the previous 
financial year.

10

Supplying the entire surplus to the company during the period 
(i.e. has not supplied milk to any other players/ competitors/
operators)- based on self-declaration and subsequent 
verification by the company.

10

Continuously maintained the member qualification (@3 marks 
for each year for the last 5 years).

15

Educational qualification of the applicant (over and above the 
minimum re-quired qualification–for graduates -10 and for 
post graduates–15) minimum qualification shall be as per the 
articles of association.

15

Other training programmes attended – producer / women 
awareness (5 marks); orientation programme for VCG (5 marks) 
/ MRG (5 marks) /LDP (leadership development programme) 
(5 marks) for board of directors’ training programme of Maahi 
(MMPCL) attended (15 marks).

15

Received any award or recognition as member of the company 
(like best ib award for  member / VCG / MRG etc) / applicant 
has served as director on the board of directors of Maahi 
(MMPCL) (5 marks).

5 

Having received recognition for voluntary service (subject to 
documentary proof)

5

TOTAL 100
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FURTHER RESOLVED THAT all 
the terms and conditions contained 
in the Ordinary Resolution no.  3rd 
AGM:26.08.14:11/2014-15 will 
remain unchanged.
FURTHER RESOLVED THAT for 
the purpose of giving effect to this 
resolution, the Board of Directors 
of the Company be and is hereby 
authorized to take all such steps/
actions and to do all such acts, 
deeds, matters and things, as it 

may in its absolute discretion 
deem necessary and expedient and 
to settle any question, difficulty 
or doubt that may arise in this 
regard.”
Smt. Maksuda Mudesar Sherasiya 
(Folio No: 0224573) belonging to 
Class – B seconded the resolution.
The Chairman put the motion 
to vote and on a show of hands 
declared the same as approved 
unanimously.

Vote of Thanks:

There being no other business, the meeting was concluded with a vote of thanks. 
Time of Commencement of Meeting : 11.00 a.m.
Time of Conclusion of Meeting  : 12.30 p.m. 
Minutes of Meeting entered on  :  26th September, 2022

Date: 30/09/2022 Chairman 
Place: RAJKOT
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MAAHI MILK PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED

BUDGET FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-24

Sr. 
No.

Particulars Rupees in 
Lakhs

(A) Financial Budget
(a) Income:
      Total Income 202,694.78 
(b) Expenses:  
      Variable Expenses 193,870.89 
      Advertisement and Sales Promotion Exp. 1,473.62 
      Fixed Expenses 6,595.83 
Total Expense 201,940.34 
(c) Profit Before Tax (a-b) 754.44 
(d) Corporate Tax 189.89 
(e) Profit After Tax (c-d) 564.55 

(B) Capital Budget
(a) Field Assets 5,829.66             
(b) Office Assets 375.00              
(c) Total (a+b) 6,204.66 
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Maahi Milk Producer Company Limited
(Registered under Part IX-A of the Companies Act, 1956 as “Producer Company”)

(CIN: U01403GJ2012PTC070646)
REGISTERED OFFICE: 3rd & 4th Floor, Sakar Building, Opp. Rajkumar College

Dr. Radhakrishnan Road, Rajkot-360 001, Gujarat.
Tel.: 0281 2460732, Fax: 0281 2460734 

email: info@maahimilk.com       website : www.maahimilk.com

:: NOTICE ::

Notice is hereby given that the 
12th Annual General Meeting of 
the Members of MAAHI MILK 
PRODUCER COMPANY LIMITED, 
will be held on Friday,1st September, 
2023 at 11.00 a.m., at Sayaji Hotel, 
Vrundavan Society Main Road, Near 
Pradhyuman Greencity Tower, Kalawad 
Road, Rajkot - 360005 to transact the 
following business:

Item no. 1– Adoption of financial 
statements.

To receive, consider and adopt the 
audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the financial year ended 
31st March, 2023 together with the 
report of the Board of Directors and 
Auditors thereon.

Item no. 2 – Declaration of Dividend.

To declare a Limited Return (dividend) 
of Rs. 8 per equity share of Rs.100/- 
each for the financial year ended on 
31st March, 2023.

I t e m  n o .  3  T o  a p p o i n t 
Shri Ashokbhai Vitthalbhai Rangpara 
(DIN:10245794),  representing 
Class-A, as a Director.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass 
with or without modification(s), the 
following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 378P of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and any other 
applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with provisions of 
Article of Association of the Company, 
Shri Mahendrasinh Mahipatsinh Jadeja 
(DIN: 07566111), representing class- A, 
who shall complete his second term 
of appointment and, not eligible for 
re-appointment as per the provisions 
of Article 9.6.iii, shall retire at the 
12th Annual General meeting of the 
Company, and to ensure the Class 
representation of members on the 
Board based on the Patronage criteria 
(vide Article 9.5 read with 9.6 i) and 
based on the recommendation of the 
Nominating committee and that of 
the Board,  in his place Shri Ashokbhai 
Vitthalbhai Rangpara (DIN:10245794) 
representing class “A” members, be and 
is hereby appointed as a Director of the 
Company, whose period of office shall 
be liable to retire by rotation.”
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Item no. 4 – To appoint Smt. Hitarthi 
Kanaksinh Dodiya (DIN:10245643), 
representing Class-C, as Director.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass 
with or without modification(s), the 
following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 378P of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and any other 
applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the provisions 
of the Articles of Association of the 
Company, Shri Mathurbhai Rambhai 
Raiyani (DIN: 07566166), representing 
class- C, who shall complete his 
second term of appointment and, not 
eligible for re-appointment as per the 
provisions of Article 9.6.iii, shall retire 
at the 12th Annual General meeting of 
the Company, and to ensure the Class 
representation of members on the 
Board based on the Patronage criteria 
(vide Article 9.5 read with 9.6 i) and 
based on the recommendation of the 
Nominating committee and that of 
the Board,  in his place Smt. Hitarthi 
Kanaksinh Dodiya (DIN:10245643) 
representing class “C” members, be and 
is hereby appointed as a Director of the 
Company, whose period of office shall 
be liable to retire by rotation.”

I t e m  n o .  5  –  To  a p p o i n t 
Shri Bharatkumar Mulubhai Vala 
(DIN: 10245743), representing 
Class-C, as Director.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass 
with or without modification(s), the 
following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 378P of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and any other 
applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the provisions of the 
Articles of Association of the Company, 
Shri Vishvasbhai Ramsinhbhai Dodiya 
(DIN: 07885716), representing class- C, 
who shall complete his second term 
of appointment and, not eligible for 
re-appointment as per the provisions 
of Article 9.6.iii, shall retire at the 
12th Annual General meeting of the 
Company, and to ensure the Class 
representation of members on the 
Board based on the Patronage criteria 
(vide Article 9.5 read with 9.6 i) and 
based on the recommendation of the 
Nominating committee and that of the 
Board,  in his place Shri Bharatkumar 
Mulubhai Vala (DIN:10245743) 
representing class “C” members, be 
and is hereby appointed as a Director 
of the Company, whose period of office 
shall be liable to retire by rotation.”

Item no. 6 - Appointment of Price 
Waterhouse Chartered Accountants 
LLP as Statutory Auditors.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass 
with or without modification(s), the 
following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the 
provisions of Sections 139 and 142 
of the Companies Act, 2013, and 
other applicable provisions of chapter 
XXI-A of the Act and rules made 
thereunder, M/s Price Waterhouse 
Chartered Accountants LLP, (FRN 
012754N/N500016), be and are hereby 
appointed as the Statutory Auditors 
of the Company, to hold office from 
the conclusion of the 12th Annual 
General Meeting till the conclusion 
of the 13th Annual General Meeting 
of the Company, at a remuneration of 
Rs. 25,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Five 
Lakhs only) plus applicable GST tax 
and reimbursement of travelling and 
out of pocket expenses incurred by the 
Auditors for the purpose of conducting 
the audit for the financial year 2023-24.”

Item no. 7 - To consider and approve 
the Budget of the Company for the 
FY 2023-24.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass 
with or without modification(s), the 
following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, the Budget of the 
Company for the financial year 2023-
24, as placed before the meeting, be and 
is hereby approved.”

Item no. 8 - Approval for Guideline 
for constitution of Nominating 
Committee.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass 
with or without modification(s), the 
following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the 
relevant provisions of Chapter XXI-A of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable 
provisions of the Memorandum 
and Articles of Association of the 
Company, and in supersession of all 
the resolutions passed earlier in this 
matter, the guidelines for constitution 
of Nominating Committee be and is 
hereby adopted and approved:

1. The Board of the Maahi Milk 
Producer  C ompany Limited 
(“Company”) shall constitute a 
“Nominating Committee” (NC) 
within three  months  of  the 
completion of the financial year, for 
suggesting to the Board ‘Potential 
candidate for the vacant producer-
member director position on the 
Board of the Company’. 

2. The vacancy of the Producer 
Directors on the Board (under Class 
A or Class B or Class C category) 
shall be announced by the Board 
of Directors of the Company. The 
notice inviting nominations from 
eligible members for consideration 
by the Nominating Committee (to 
fill as many number of positions 
as vacant on the board) shall be 
put on the notice board of the 
Company and or on the website 
of the Company or by sending a 
circular by ordinary post to all the 
members of the respective class(es) 
for which the vacancy arises.

3. The Board shall prepare a process 
which has to be followed by the 
‘Nominating Committee’  for 
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identifying such potential members 
as referred under Article. 

4. The “Nominating Committee” 

shall consider the following table 
showing the ‘Applicant’s eligibility 
scores’ to be given against each 
parameter for the eligible applicant:

Parameter for applicant’s eligibility score Maximum 
Score

Number of days of milk supplied to the company during previous 
two financial years Scoring will be as follows:

25
(95% or more days -25; 85% to <95% days - 20; 75% to <85% - 15; 
65% to <75% - 10; 55% to <65% - 5; <55% - 0)  
Supplying the entire surplus to the Company during the period 
(i.e. has not supplied milk to any other players/ competitors/
operators)-based on self-declaration and subsequent verification 
by the Company. 

10

Continuously maintained the member qualification (@ 5 marks for 
each year for the last 3 years).

15

Educational qualification of the applicant – for graduates -10 marks 
and for Post graduates – 15 marks, for woman candidate 5 marks 
for 12th Standard Pass.

15

Other Training programmes attended - Producer / women 
awareness (5 marks); Orientation programme for VCG (5 marks) / 
MRG (5 marks)/ LDP (Leadership Development Programme) (10 
marks)  
For Board of Directors’ Training Programme of MAAHI (MMPCL) 
attended (15 marks).

25

Received any award or recognition as member of the Company 
(like best IB Award for  member / VCG/ MRG etc) / Applicant has 
served as Director on the Board of Directors of MAAHI (MMPCL) 
(5 marks).

5

Having received recognition for voluntary service (subject to 
documentary proof)

5 

TOTAL 100

5.  The ‘Nominating Committee’ 
constituted by the Board shall 
comprise of-

i) A producer-member director on 
the Board from the membership 
class for which the vacancy has 
arisen, provided that such Producer 

member director is not the one 
who is retiring and eligible for re-
appointment at that AGM. If more 
than one producer-member director 
qualifies, then one NC member 
shall be identified through draw of 
lots. Also, if no producer-member 
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director is available from that class, 
then any other producer-member 
director shall be identified through 
draw of lots;

ii) One expert from any reputed 
M a n a g e m e n t  I n s t i t u t e  o r 
an inst itut ion,  having done 
considerable work for development 
of producer owned enterprises; and

iii)  One Expert Director who is on the 
Board of the Company.

 The  C omp any  S e cre t ar y  of 
the Company shall assist the 
‘Nominating Committee’ and be 
responsible for maintaining all 
the relevant documents thereof 
including the minutes of the meeting 
of the Nominating Committee.

6. The Term of the ‘Nominating 

Committee’ shall be from the date of 
first meeting of the committee to the 
date till it sends its recommendation 
to the Board of the Company.

7. The Board shall prescribe the process 
to be adopted by the ‘Nominating 
Committee’ for identifying such 
potential members.

 FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, for 
the purpose of giving effect to this 
resolution, the Board of Directors 
of the Company be and is hereby 
authorised to take all such steps and 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters 
and things, as it may in its absolute 
discretion deem necessary and 
expedient and to settle any question, 
difficulty or doubt that may arise in 
this regard.”

By order of the Board of Directors

    Sd/-

Date: 28 July, 2023        Sanjay Talati
Place: Rajkot            (Company Secretary)
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NOTES
1. A member entitled to attend 

and vote at the annual general 
meeting (AGM) is entitled to 
appoint a proxy to attend and 
vote on a show of hands as well 
as on a poll in his/her behalf and 
a proxy must be a member of 
the company. Non-member can 
not be appointed as a proxy. The 
instrument appointing proxy in 
order to be effective should be 
duly completed, stamped and 
signed and must be deposited 
at the registered office of the 
company at least 48 hours 
before the scheduled time of the 
meeting. A blank proxy form is 
enclosed herewith. A member 
appointed as a proxy shall act 
on behalf of such member 
or members not exceeding 
300 members and holding in 
aggregate not more than 10% of 
share capital of the company.

2. Every member will have only one 
vote (on show of hands as well 
as on poll) irrespective of his/
her shareholding or patronage 
in the Company subject to the 
condition that a member has 
fulfilled a basic condition for 
voting i.e., he/she has poured 
milk for at least 200 days totalling 
to at least 500 litres in a previous 
financial year (2022-23).

3. The members of the company 
have at their First Annual General 
Meeting approved and adopted 
the criteria for categorizing 
members into different classes 
(Class A, B and C) based on 
the members’ participation in 
business (i.e., patronage criteria) 
which has been modified/altered 
at the 7th Annual General Meeting.

4. Class Categorization of 
members and their entitlement 
to voting rights:

 At the close of financial year 
(2022-23) on 31st March, 2023, 
there were total 1,13,691 members 
on the roll (Register of Members) 
of the Company, whose class 
categorization, based on their 
patronage during F.Y. 2022-23, 
and the voting right status are 
given as under:-

a) Based on the analysis of data 
w.r.t., fulfillment and non-
fulfillment of patronage 
criteria by the members during 
F.Y. 2022-23, there were 3,862 
members in Class-A, 11,180 
members in Class-B and 
31,838 members in Class-C 
(aggregating to 46,880 
members), who apart from 
fulfilling the basic condition 
for voting also fulfilled all the 
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criteria of patronage of their 
respective class, and therefore, 
they are entitled to vote on all 
the resolutions set at Item nos. 
1 to 8 of the notice including 
voting on election of Director 
of a particular class to which 
they belong.

 [Note: A member of one class 
(Class A, Class B, or Class C) 
can vote on appointment of 
director belonging to his/her 
own class only and cannot vote 
on appointment of director of 
other Class (vide Article 9.5 of 
the Articles of Association.)]

b) There were 9,810 members, 
who have fulfilled basic 
condition for voting (i.e., 
pouring of milk for at least 200 
days totaling to at least 500 
litres in a previous financial 
year) but have not fulfilled 
one or more of the patronage 
criteria of their respective class 
during F.Y. 2022-23. Hence, 
they do not qualify to be in 
any of the three classes for 
the purpose of categorizing 
members into different classes, 
and consequently, they are not 
entitled to vote on class based 
election of Directors (at Item 
nos. 3, 4, & 5), however, they 
can vote on other resolutions 

at Item nos. 1, 2, 6, 7 & 8 of the 
notice.

c) A member who has not fulfilled 
the basic criteria of pouring 
milk for at least 200 days 
totaling to at least 500 liters in 
a previous FY 2022-23, will not 
have voting right at the AGM. 
Thus, 57,001 members who did 
not pour milk for at least 200 
days totalling to at least 500 
litres in a previous financial 
year (2022-23), and hence, 
they lost their voting right and 
are not entitled vote on any 
resolution to be moved at this 
Annual General Meeting. 

d) A milk producer, who was 
a member as on 31st March, 
2023, but whose membership 
has been cancelled post 31st 

March, 2023, will be entitled 
to dividend for F.Y. 2022-23, 
but shall not be entitled to 
any share/membership related 
rights, as he/she has ceased to 
be a member of the Company. 

 Accordingly, out of the total 
1,13,691 members, on the 
register of members, as on 
31st March, 2023 membership 
of 10,294 members have been 
cancelled post 31st March, 2023, 
hence, such 10,294 members 
will not be entitled to attend 
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and vote at AGM, although 
they will be entitled to get 
dividend (Limited Return) for 
FY 2022-23, if declared by the 
AGM.

e) A new member, who was 
admitted as member of the 
Company post 31st March, 
2023, can attend the AGM, 
but is not entitled to dividend 
for F.Y. 2022-23 nor have 
voting right at ensuing AGM. 
Accordingly, after the close of 
the of Financial Year on 31st 
March, 2023 and till the date of 
this notice 1,095 new members 
were admitted, who will not 
be entitled to get dividend (if 
declared) for FY 2022-23 nor 
have a voting right at ensuing 
AGM. However, they can 
attend the AGM.

f) MPP (Milk Pooling Point) wise 
list of aforesaid members are 
available at respective MPPs 
and will be available at AGM 
Venue.

g) The Company will employ 
such method and arrangement 
to distinguish members of 
different classes for facilitating 
voting as is convenient, which 
shall be appraised to the 
members at the meeting.

5. The names of candidates for 
election to the office of Director 
including a statement of 
qualifications in respect of each 
candidate; the audited Financial 
Statements for the financial year 
ended 31st March 2023 together 
with Reports of the Board of 
Directors and Auditors thereon 
and the Minutes of the previous 
AGM held on 2nd September, 
2022 are annexed herewith. 
Budget for F.Y. 2023-24 is also 
enclosed.

6. Members are requested to bring 
their copy of the Annual Report 
and Attendance Slip at the 
meeting as the Company would 
not provide any copy at the venue 
of the AGM.

7. Members desirous of obtaining 
any information concerning 
the accounts or operations of 
the Company are requested to 
address their communications 
to the Registered Office of the 
Company, well in advance at least 
seven days before the date of the 
meeting, so that the required 
information can be made 
available at the meeting, to the 
extent possible.

8. Members are requested to 
quote the folio numbers and 
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their Member code in all their 
correspondence.

9. The Explanatory Statement 
setting out all material facts 
in respect of Item no. 8 of the 
accompanying notice is attached 
herewith.

10. Relevant documents referred to 
in the accompanying Notice and 
the Explanatory Statement shall 
be open for inspection by the 
members at the Registered Office 
of the Company on all working 
days except Saturdays, during 
normal business hours (11:00 hrs 
to 16:00 hrs).

11. The limited return (dividend), as 
recommended by the Board, if 
declared at the meeting, will be 
paid to those shareholders, whose 
names appear in the Register of 
Members of the Company as on 
the 31st March, 2023.

 Statutorily, any dividend which 
has not been paid or claimed 
within 30 (thirty) days from 
the date of declaration shall be 

transferred within seven days from 
the date of expiry of said thirty 
days to an unclaimed dividend 
account with a scheduled bank. 
Any money transferred to the 
unpaid dividend account which 
remains unpaid or unclaimed 
for a period of seven years from 
the date of such transfer shall be 
transferred to Investor Education 
and Protection Fund.

12. Members are requested to notify 
immediately any change in their 
addresses with PIN Code to the 
Company.

13. Members, who have not 
submitted their nomination form 
may send their Nomination in 
the prescribed form duly filled in 
to the Company at its registered 
office. Nomination Form can be 
obtained from the Registered 
Office of the Company.

14. Weapons, fire arms, ammunitions, 
knives and blades, sharp 
instruments etc., are prohibited 
at the AGM venue.
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STATEMENT OF QUALFICATION IN RESPECT OF THE 
CANDIDATES TO BE ELECTED AS DIRECTOR UNDER 
SECTION 378ZA (4)(C) OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013.

Item no 3, 4 and 5 of notice respectively:

1. Shri Ashokbhai Vitthalbhai Rangpara (DIN:10245794 (representing 
Class-A Member) is M.Com, B.Ed., he is engaged in Agriculture and 
Dairy Farming and teaching.

2. Smt. Hitarthi Kanaksinh Dodiya (DIN:10245643) (representing 
Class-C Member) is M.A, B.Ed. she is engaged in Agriculture and 
Dairy Farming.

3. Shri Bharatkumar Mulubhai Vala (DIN:10245743) (representing 
Class-C Member) is MSW and he is engaged in Agriculture and 
Dairy Farming.

Explanatory Statement:
(For item no. 8 of the accompanying notice dtd. 28th July, 2023)

Item no. 8
In order to have a transparency in 
the matter of selection of Director, 
members have at their 3rd AGM 
held on 26th August, 2014 adopted 
a guideline for constitution of 
Nominating Committee including 
the table showing the ‘Applicant’s 
Eligibility Scores against different 
parameter for the eligible applicant. 
Further, the captioned resolution 
was modified two times, one at the 
6th Annual General Meeting held 
on 29th August, 2017 vide resolution 
no. 6th AGM:29.08.17:8/2017-18 to 
widen the scope for representation of 
talented experts on the Nominating 
Committee. Secondly, it was partially 

modified at the 11th AGM held on 2nd 
September, 2022 vide resolution no. 
11th AGM:02.09.2022:11/2022-23 to 
include the attendance of Leadership 
Development Programme (LDP) with 
5 marks under the parameter of Other 
Training Programmes attended. 
One parameter in a score card table 
is -  Share subscription is not falling 
short by more than 10% of the 
actual requirement as on 31st March 
of the previous financial year. (10 
Marks). A company has the system 
to automatically deduct amount 
for proposed allotment of shares 
upon additional milk poured by 
the members over and about his/
her commitment determined based 
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on his/her shareholding. Hence, 
this parameter has no relevance as 
there would not be shortfall in the 
subscription of shares.
In order to remove the aforesaid 
parameter from the score card table 
which presently becomes irrelevant 
and to increase the marks for 
attendance of LDP as well as to give 
the 5 marks to woman candidate 
for over and above the minimum 
qualification as prescribed in the 
Articles of Association, it is proposed 

to adopt the fresh Ordinary Resolution 
incorporating all the modifications 
made at the previous Annual General 
Meeting.
None of the Directors/Officers of the 
Company or their relatives is, in any 
way interested or cornered in the 
resolution.
The Board of Directors recommends 
Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item 
no. 8 of the accompanied notice for the 
approval of members.

By order of the Board of Directors

    Sd/-

Date: 28th July, 2023        Sanjay Talati
Place: Rajkot            (Company Secretary)



Maahi Milk Parlour inaugurated by 
Chief Executive - Dr. Sanjaykumar Govani 

at Rajkot.




